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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
  Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business type activities of Coon Rapids
Municipal Utilities, a component unit of the City of Coon Rapids, Iowa, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities’ basic financial statements
listed in the table of contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of Coon Rapids
Municipal Utilities' management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Chapter 11 of the
Code of Iowa, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards and provisions
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 1, the financial statements of Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities are intended to
present the financial position and results of operations and cash flows of proprietary fund types of only
that portion of the financial reporting entity of the City of Coon Rapids, Iowa, that is attributable to the
transactions of the Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business type activities of Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities at June 30, 2004, and
the changes in financial position and the cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

As described in Note 23 to the financial statements, for the year ended June 30, 2004, the Coon Rapids
Municipal Utilities adopted Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments ; Statement
No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments:  Omnibus; Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures; and
Statement No. 41, Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Perspective Differences.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 1, 2004, on our consideration of Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities’ internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations and contracts.  That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 7 through 16
and 60 through 62 are not required parts of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.  We did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities’ basic financial statements.  Other supplementary
information included in Schedules 1 and 2 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Olsen, Muhlbauer & Co., L.L.P.

OLSEN, MUHLBAUER & CO., L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

Carroll, Iowa
October 1, 2004
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M an agem en t’s  D iscu ss io n  an d A n alysis

C om m u n ica tion s U tility
O v e rvie w :

In  2004 , the 

 sound  financ ia l pos ition  as a  resu lt o f 
an  affe ctive  bund ling  p rogram  w h ich  
a llow s cu stom ers to  save  m ore , as they  
u tilize m ore p roduc ts.  T he  bund ling 
p rogra m  resu lted  in  an  inc rease o f over 
150  teleph one lines lead ing to  net inco m e 
being  m ore  than  budgeted .

            

O p era ting  reve nue increased  17 .4%  
in 2004  p rim a rily  due to  a  s ign ifican t 
inc rease  in local tele phone an d  long
d is tance  custom e rs.  To tal 2004  opera ting  
expenses  are  1 .5%  gre ater tha n the  
p rev ious  y ea r.  T h is incre ase is 
a ttr ibu tab le  to  the in crease in  c ustom ers 
and  prog ram m er ra te  inc rease s fo r c ab le 
telev ision .

C om m unica tions U tility  
w a s a b le  to  inc rease  its ca sh  a nd  im prove  
its

C o m m u n ic a tio n s U tility  

R es u lts  o f O p e ra tio n s:

F in an cia l H igh lig h ts:
D o lla r s in  th o u s a n d s

(A s re p o rte d  in  the  Sta te m e nt o f R e v e n ue s , E x p e n s e s &  C h an g e s  in  
F u n d  N e t A s se ts )

2 00 4          20 0 3
C u re n t a n d  O th er  A sse ts . ... ... ... .. 9 8 5 ... ... .. ..8 1 3
N e t C a p i ta l A sse ts . ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... 6 5 . ... ... .. ... .7 0
     To ta l A sse ts ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... . 1 ,0 4 9 .... ... .. ..8 8 3
L o n g- te rm  L iab il itie s . ... ... ... ... ... . 1 5 1 .... ... .. ..1 8 1
O th e r L ia b i lit ie s ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 1 0 3 ... ... ... ..11 3
     To ta l L ia b ilit ie s ... ... .. ... ... ... ... 2 5 4 .... ... .. ..2 9 4
N e t A sse ts :
  Inv e ste d  in  C ap it al  A sse ts
  N e t o f R elat e d  D eb t. ... ... ... ... ... ... 6 5 ... ... .. ... ...0
  R e s tric te d .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 0 ... ... ... ... ...5
  U nr est r ic te d ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 7 3 1 .... ... .. ..5 8 5
     To ta l N et  A sse ts . ... ... ... ... ... ... . 7 9 5 ... ... .. ..5 8 9
O p e rat in g  R e ve n u es . ... ... ... ... ... 1 ,2 7 5 .... ... .1 ,0 8 6
N o n- O pe ra ting  R ev e nu e s .. ... ... ... .. 5 0 . ... ... .. ... .5 5
     To ta l R e ve n ue s. ... ... ... ... ... ... 1 ,3 2 5 ... ... .1 ,1 4 1
O p e rat in g  E x pe n se s ... ... ... ... ... . 1 ,1 0 9 ... ... .1 ,0 7 6
In te re st o n  L o n g- te rm  D e b t.. ... ... ... . 9 ... ... .. ... .1 0
O th e r N o n -O p er a t in g  E x p . ... ... ... ... . 7 . ... ... .. ... .2 5
     To ta l E x pe n se s. .. ... ... ... ... ... . 1 ,1 2 4 .. .. ... .1 ,111
     C h an g e  in  N e t A sse ts .. ... ... ... . 2 0 0 .... ... .. ... .3 0
N e t A sse ts , B eg in n in g .... ... ... ... ... 5 9 5 ... ... .. ..5 5 9
N e t A sse ts , E nd in g ... ... ... .. ... ... ... . 7 9 5 ... ... .. ..5 8 9

C o m m u nic a tion s  U t ility  To ta l R e v e n ue s:   $ 1 ,3 25 ,1 4 3

C o m m u nic a tion s  U t ility  To ta l E x p e n se s :  $ 1 ,1 2 4 ,85 0

T he  C oon  R ap ids M un icipal 
U tilities, “ C R M U ,” p rov ides th is 
narra tive overv iew  an d an a lysis of  the  
C om m unica tions, E lec tric, N a tu ra l G as , 
Wa ter an d  Was tew ater U tilitie s ’ f in ancia l 
activ ities  based  upon  c urren tly  k now n  
fac ts , decisio ns, an d  cond ition s fo r the 
fis ca l yea r ended June 30, 2004 .  T h is 
shou ld  be  read  in  c on junction  w ith  the 
Sta te m ent o f N et A sse ts, the  Sta tem ent o f 
R ev enue s, E x penses and  C hanges in  
F und  N et A sse ts, a nd Statem en t o f C a sh  
F low s, w h ich  fo llow.

T he  F inanc ia l Statem en ts of the 
U tility  re port in form ation  utilizing  the  
acc rua l bas is of accoun ting .  T he 
F inancia l Statem en ts confo rm  to  
acc oun ting  p rincipa ls w h ich  are gene ra lly  
acc ep te d  in  the U nited  S ta tes o f A m erica.

T he  S ta te m en t o f N et A ssets 
p rovides  info rm ation  a bout the ty pe  and  
am ount of in ves tm en ts in  re sourc es  
(as sets)  an d  the o b lig a tions to  c re d ito rs 
(lia bilitie s), and  ind ic ate those  restric ted  
by  the B oard o f C om m unica tion , E lec tr ic , 
N a tu ral G as, W ater &  W astew ater 
Trustees ( the B oa rd).  It  a lso  p ro vides  the  
bas is fo r m ak ing  a  va rie ty  o f f inan c ia l 
asses sm e n ts abo u t the  s tructu re, liqu idity, 
and  financ ia l fle x ib ility  o f the  U tility.

T he  S ta te m en t o f R ev enue s, 
E xp enses, an d  C han ges  in N et A ssets 
repo rts a ll the revenu es a nd expenses fo r 
the  year, includ ing  non -o perating  
reve nue s and  expe nse s.  T h is statem en t 
can  be  u se d to determ in e  w hether the  
U tility  ha s re covered  a ll o f its actual costs  
thro ugh  ra tes and o th er cha rg es .

T he  S ta te m en t o f C ash  F low s  repo rts 
the  cash from  ope ra ting  activ itie s, cash  
from  non  ca p ita l financ ing  activitie s, as  
w e ll a s c ap ita l an d  re lated  financ ing  
activ ities , a nd  inve sting  activitie s.  T h is  
statem en t c an  be  u sed  to  determ ine  th e 
sou rce , u se and  change in  ca sh .

B ec ause  C R M U  is  im p le m en ting  
new  repo rting  stan dards  fo r th is fisc al 
year w ith  sign ific an t changes in  con ten t 
and  struc tu re , m uch  o f th e  info rm a tion  is 
no t easily  c om pa ra b le  to  p rio r yea rs .  
H o w ever, in the  fu ture  y ears, 
com parisons w ill be  m ore  m ean ing fu l 
and  w ill go  fu rthe r in exp lain in g  C R M U ’s 
fina ncial position and  re su lts o f 
opera tio ns .



-8-

F in an cia l P o sition :
(A s re po rted  o n  th e  S ta tem e nt o f N e t A s se ts )

A s o f Ju n e 3 0, 2 00 4 , th e  
C o m m un ica tio n s U tility  d id  n o t h a ve  a n y  
res tric ted  fu n d s ap p ro pria te d  fo r sp ec ific  
p u rpo s es.  T h e  c om m u n ica tio ns  u tility  
d o es h av e  a  jo in t u se  ag re em en t w ith  th e  
e le ctric  u tility  re qu irin g  an  a n n ua l 
p ay m en t o f $ 1 7 3 ,0 0 0 .  T his  jo in t us e  
a gre em en t a llo w s th e co m m u n ic ation s 

u tility  to  u tiliz e  the  e le ctric  u tility ’s  
c om m u n ica tio n  d is tr ibu tio n  p la nt.

T h e  c o m m un ica tio n s u tili ty  a lso  h as  
a n  in teru tility  lo an  w ith  th e  n a tu ra l g as 
u tility.  T h e n ote  rec eiv ab le  d ec rea sed  by  
$ 2 8 ,4 8 2  in  2 0 0 4 .

N e t ca p ita l a sse ts  rep re sen t 6 .2 %  o f 
to ta l ass ets .  T h is  low  p erc en tag e  is  

a ttr ib u ta b le  to  th e fa c t th at th e  
c om m u n ica tio ns  u tility  d o es  n o t o w n  the  
d is tr ib ution  p la n t, w h ich  is  a  ca pita l a sse t 
o f th e  e lec tric  u tili ty.

A c co u n ts  rec eiv ab les d ec rea sed  an d  
c ash  in cre as ed  from  th e  p rior y ea r, 
res ultin g  in  a n  inc rea se  in  to ta l a sse ts  o f 
1 8 .8 % .

C o m m u n ic a tio n s  U t ility  S o u rc e  o f  F u n d s :   $ 1 ,3 2 5 ,1 4 3 C o m m u n ic a tio n s  U t ility  U se  o f  F u n d s : $ 1 ,3 2 5 ,1 4 3

Teleph o ne:  74 .2 %

C ab le  T V:  1 3 .0%

Intern e t:  9 .0 %

N o no pera tin g
R ev en ue:  3.8%

Pag ing :  0.1%

C o st  of
P ro gram m in g : 4 4.9 %

Jo in t U se  E xp ense : 1 3.1%

D ep rec ia tion :  0 .8 %

O th er
O p era ting  E xp en ses:  2 5.0 %

N o no pera tin g  E xp enses:  1 .2%

C h an ge  in N et A sse ts :  15.1%
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M a n a g em en t’s  D iscu ss io n  a n d  A n a lys is  (co n tin u ed )

E lec tric  U tility
O v e rvie w :

T h e  so u n d  fin an cial p o sitio n  o f th e  
E le ctric  U tility  is  a  re su lt of 
m a n ag e m e nt’s  d e dica tio n  to  o p tim ize  
g en e ratio n  a sse ts  a nd  m inim iz e 
tra n sm issio n  c o sts  in  co o rd in a tio n  w ith
N IM E C A’s  ca p ac ity  sh a rin g  a g ree m e nt 
a nd  co m m o n tra n sm issio n  sy stem  
a gre em en t.

O p era tin g  rev e n u es an d  e x pe n se s 
w e re  2 7 .0%  a n d  1 3 .0 %  h igh e r th an  
p ro je cted , res pe ctive ly, w hile  p u rc ha se d 
e ne rg y  c os ts  in c rea sed  9 .5 %  co m p ared  to  
2 0 0 3.

E le ctric  U tility  F in a n c ia l H ig h lig h ts :
D o lla r s in  th ou san ds

           2 0 0 4           2 0 0 3
C u re n t  a n d  O th er  A sse ts .. ... ... . 2 ,9 3 6 ... ... .2 ,7 6 4
N e t C a p ita l A sse ts . ... ... ... ... ... ... 7 ,7 5 4 ... ... .7 ,9 4 3
     To ta l A sset s ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ...1 0 ,6 9 1 . ... ..1 0 ,7 0 7
L o n g -te rm  L iab il itie s . ... ... ... ... . 4 ,1 9 1 . ... ... .4 ,5 0 3
O th e r  L ia b i liti e s ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 4 7 3 ... ... ... .4 0 6
     To ta l L ia b ilit ie s ... ... ... ... ... ... 4 ,6 6 5 ... ... .4 ,9 0 9
N e t A sset s :
  In v e s te d  in  C a p ita l  A sse ts
  N e t o f  R ela ted  D eb t. ... ... ... ... .. 3 ,2 2 6 . ... ... ... .2 0 3
  R e s tr ic te d .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 5 7 2 .. ... ... .4 8 9
  U n r es t r ic te d . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 2 ,2 2 8 . ... ... .5 ,1 0 6
     To ta l N et  A sse ts . ... ... ... ... ... . 6 ,0 2 6 ... ... .5 ,7 9 8
O p e rat in g  R e v e n u es . ... ... ... ... ... 1 ,9 7 7 ... ... .1 ,7 4 6
N o n - O p e ra tin g  R e v e n u e s .. ... ... . 2 2 4 ... ... ... .2 3 7
     To ta l R e v e n u e s .. ... ... ... ... .. .. 2 ,2 0 1 ... ... .1 ,9 8 3
O p e rat in g  E x p e n se s ... ... ... ... ... . 1 ,6 8 7 ... ... .1 ,2 7 4
In te re s t o n  L o n g - te rm  D e b t... ... . 2 2 4 ... ... ... .2 7 7
O th e r  N o n -O p era t in g  E x p . ... ... ... 2 1 . ... ... ... ...4 7
     To ta l E x p e n ses . ... ... ... ... ... ... 1 ,9 3 2 .. ... .1 ,5 9 7
     C h an g e  in  N e t A sse ts .. .... ... .. 2 7 0 . ... ... ...3 8 6
N e t A sset s , B eg in n in g . ... ... ... .. 5 ,7 5 6 ... ... .5 ,4 1 2
N e t A sset s , E n d in g ... ... ... ... ... .. 6 ,0 2 6 ... ... .5 ,7 9 8

R es u lts  o f O p er a tio n s:
(A s rep or ted  in  the  Sta tem ent o f R evenu es , E xpen se s &  C ha ng es  in  
F u nd  N e t A s se ts )

R ev e nu e  fro m  o pe ratio n s in c rea sed  
1 3 .2 %  d u e to  a  ra te  in cre ase  in  2 0 0 4  an d  
a  2 .1 %  in crea se  in  k ilo w att-h o u rs so ld  to  
c us to m e rs, co m pa red  to  2 0 0 3 .

Total k ilow a tt-h o u r sa le s w e re  d ow n  
1 .7 %  fro m  th e  p rev io us  y ea r d u e to  
w e ath er a n d  u n it a v aila b ility.  D u e  to  
inc rea se d cu sto m e r sa le s a n d  u n it 
a va ila bility, w h ole sale  sa le s w e re  do w n  
5 .3 %  re su ltin g  in  a  re v en u e de c re as e of 

o v er $ 3 8 ,0 0 0 .
P u rch a sed  en e rg y co sts  ha v e rise n  

o v er 3 2 %  in  th e  la st tw o y ea rs , m ain ly  
d u e to  w ho les ale  po w e r in crea se s fro m  
lon g -term  WA PA  c o n tra cts  a n d N IM E C A  
m e m b e r c ap ac ity  p u rch a ses  fro m  
C O R N B E LT.

In te rest c h arg e s w e re lo w e r th an  th e  
p rev iou s  y ea r d u e to  th e  refin an cin g  o f 
c ap ita l lo an  n ote s fro m  6.0 %  to  3 .8 5 %  in  
2 0 0 4.

E lec t r ic  U ti lity  To ta l E x p e n se s :  $ 1 ,9 3 1 ,8 4 9E lec t r ic  U ti lity  To ta l R ev e n u e s :  $ 2 ,2 0 1 ,3 7 7
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F in an cia l P o sitio n :
(A s re po rted  o n  th e  S ta tem en t o f N e t A sse ts )

R es tric ted  fu n d s an d  o the r a sse ts  
a pp ro p ria te d  fo r sp e cific  p u rp o ses, 
$ 1 ,2 5 5 ,8 8 5  a t Ju ne  3 0 , 2 0 04 , in clu de  th e  
1 9 9 8 B on d  S in k ing  F un d, 1 9 9 8  D e b t 
R es erv e F u n d, 1 9 9 8  C ap ita l 
Im p ro v em en t F u n d , 200 0  N ote  S ink in g  
F u n d , C O R N B E LT  D eferre d  P a tro n ag e  
D iv id en d  F u nd , N IM E C A -C o m m o n  
Tran sm is sion  S y ste m  F u n d , C u sto m e r 
D e po s it  F u n d , an d  th e H ea lth  
R eim b u rse m e nt F un d .  T h e se fun d s h av e 

b ee n  se t as id e  as  re qu ired  b y  bo n d  
c ov e n an ts  o r fo r u se s sp ec ified  b y  th e  
B o ard .

T h e  E le ctric  U tility  ha d  a  p rior 
p erio d  ad ju stm e nt to  in v en to ry  a n d  a n 
a dju stm e nt to  re m o v e so m e  a sse ts  th a t 
h ad  tra de d  p rev io u sly  w h ic h  d ec rea sed  
c ap ita l ass ets  b y  a lm o st $ 9 8 ,0 0 0.

In clu d in g  w o rk  in  p ro ce ss, the  
c ha n g e in  c ap ita l as sets re su lts  in  a  n et 
inc rea se  in  E lec tric  ca p ita l asse ts  o f 

$ 8 2 ,7 1 7, a n d  the  to ta l E lec tric  ca p ita l 
a ssets  in c rea sed  ov e r $1 8 0,0 0 0.

T h e  n o te  re ce iv a b le  from  th e  C o o n 
R ap id s D e v elo pm en t G ro u p  d e crea se d  b y  
$ 11 ,4 3 8  in  2 0 0 4 .

In  2 0 0 4 , th e  e lec tric  u tili ty  d ec rea sed  
its  d eb t o b lig atio n  fro m  the  S eries  1 99 8  
R ev e n ue  B o n d s a n d  S e rie s 2 0 0 0  C a pita l 
L o a n  N o tes b y  $ 2 96 ,7 71 .

E lec t r ic  U ti lity  S o u r ce  o f  F u n d s :  $ 2 ,2 0 1 ,3 7 7

R es iden tia l:  2 0.0%

C o m m ercia l:  2 4.1 %

Ind us tria l:  15 .2 %

Interd epartm enta l:   2 .2 %

W ho lesa le
Sales :  2 8.0%

O th er:   0 .3 %

N o no pera tin g
R ev en ue:  10 .2 %

E lec t r ic  U ti lity  U se  o f  F u n d s:  $ 2 ,2 0 1 ,3 7 7

C o st  of P ow er:  39 .1 %

A d dition a l Tran sm iss ion
E xp en se :  2.2 %

D ep rec ia tion :  1 4 .1 %

O th er
O p era ting  E xp en ses:  2 1.3 %

N o no pera tin g E xp enses:  11 .1 %

C h an ge  in N et  A sse ts:   1 5.1%
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M a n a g em en t’s  D iscu ss io n  a n d  A n a lys is  (co n tin u ed )

N atu ra l G as U tility
O v e rvie w :

T h e  N a tu ra l G as  U tility  is  in  a  so u n d  
fin a n cial p o sitio n  w ith  stro n g  re serv e s.  
In cre ase d  tran sp o rta tion  a nd  co m m o d ity  
c os ts , c o up led  w ith  lo w  in te rest ra te s  
h av e  lim ited  th e  g as  u tility ’s  ea rn in g s 
o v er th e  p ast tw o  y e ars.

T h e  g a s u tility  w ill be  a n aly zin g 
rev e n ue  re q uirem en ts an d  c os t a llo c atio n s 
fo r p o ssib le  a dju stm e nt d u e  to  the  
a ntic ipa ted  re d uc tio n  o f in d us tria l sa les in  
2 0 0 6 an d  b e y on d .

N a tu ra l G a s U tility  F in a n cia l 
H ig h lig h ts:
D o lla r s in  th ou san ds

           2 0 0 4           2 0 0 3
C u re n t a n d  O th er  A sse ts .. ... ... . 2 ,0 1 0 .. ... ..2 ,0 11
N e t C a p ita l A sse ts . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 5 5 6 ... ... ... .4 8 6
     To ta l A sset s ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 2 ,5 6 6 .. ... .2 ,4 9 6
L o n g - te rm  L iab il itie s . ... ... ... ... ... ... . 0 ... ... ... ... ..0
O th e r  L ia b i liti e s ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 1 4 2 . ... ... ...5 2
     To ta l L ia b ilit ie s ... ... ... ... ... ... .. . 1 4 2 ... ... ... ...5 2
N e t A sset s :
  In v e s te d  in  C ap ita l  A sse ts
  N e t o f  R ela ted  D eb t. ... ... ... ... .. 4 6 9 .. ... ... ...1 4
  R e s tr ic te d .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 0 .. ... ... .7 8 9
  U n r es t r ic te d ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 1 ,9 5 5 ... ... .1 ,6 4 1
     To ta l N et  A sse ts . ... ... ... ... ... . 2 ,4 2 4 ... ... .2 ,4 4 4
O p e rat in g  R e v e n u es . ... ... ... ... ... 1 ,0 3 9 ... ... ... .9 4 7
N o n - O p e ra tin g  R e v e n u e s .. ... ... . 6 8 ... ... ... ...8 5
     To ta l R e v e n u e s .. .. ... ... ... ... .. 1 ,1 0 7 ... ... .1 ,0 3 1
O p e rat in g  E x p e n se s ... ... ... ... ... . 1 ,0 9 7 . ... ... ... .9 0 7
In te re s t o n  L o n g - te rm  D e b t.. ... ... ... 0 ... ... ... ... ..0
O th e r  N o n -O p era t in g  E x p . ... ... ... . 5 3 ... ... ... ... ..0
     To ta l E x p e n ses . ... ... ... .. ... ... . 1 ,1 5 0 . ... ... ... .9 0 7
     C h an g e  in  N e t A sse ts .. ... ... ... (4 3 ) .. ... ... ..1 2 5
N e t A sset s , B eg in n in g . ... ... ... .. 2 ,4 6 7 ... ... .2 ,3 2 0
N e t A sset s , E n d in g ... ... ... ... ... .. 2 ,4 2 4 ... ... .2 ,4 4 4

R es u lts  o f O p e ra tio n s:
(A s rep o rted  in  the  Sta tem ent o f R evenu es , E xpen ses &  C h an ges  in  
F u nd  N e t A s se ts )

P u rch a sed  en e rg y an d  tran s m ission  
c os ts  in c rea sed  28 .1 %  in  20 0 4 .  To ta l 
c ub ic  fee t sa les  in crea se d 1 .5 %  o v er th e  
sa m e  p erio d  res ultin g  in  a n  inc rea se  o f 
rev e n ue s an d  e x pe n ses  fro m  op e ratio n s of 
9 .7 %  a n d 1 7 .2 % , re sp ec tiv ely.

In te rest re v en u e in c reased  ov e r 

$ 3 6 ,0 0 0 in  2 00 4 ; h o w ev e r, n o n-o p era tin g  
e xp e n ses a lso  in cre as ed  b y  $ 2 4 ,5 1 7  a n d  
in-lie u -o f-tax  p ay m e n ts in c rea sed  
$ 1 2 ,2 1 8 o v er th e  sam e p erio d.

In  2 0 0 4 , th e  g as u tili ty  rea lize d  a  
d is co u n t o n  th e  T IF  re ce iv a b le  a m o u n tin g 
to  a  $ 21 ,4 33  ad d ition  to  no n -op e ratin g  
e xp e n ses.

N a tu ra l G a s  U tili ty  To ta l E x p en se s :  $ 1 ,1 5 0 ,0 0 7N a tu ra l G a s  U tili ty  To ta l R ev en u es :   $ 1 ,1 0 6 ,9 0 0
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F in an cia l P o sitio n :
(A s re po rted  o n  th e  S ta tem en t o f N e t A sse ts )

R es tric ted  fu n d s an d  o the r a sse ts  
a pp ro p ria te d  fo r sp e cific  p u rp o ses, 
$ 1 ,4 8 0 ,6 6 6  a t Ju ne  3 0 , 2 0 04 , in clu de  th e  
C ap ita l Im p ro v em en t F u n d , E co n o m ic  
R es erv e F u n d, E q uip m e n t R e p la ce m e n t 
F u n d  a nd  H ea lth  R e im b urse m e n t F u n d.

N e t ca pita l a sse ts  rep resen ts  2 1 .8 %  
o f to ta l ass ets .  C a pita l e xp e n ditu re s fo r 
d is tr ib ution  p la nt im prov em en ts 
inc rea se d o v er $ 5 0 ,0 0 0  m o re  th an  

a ntic ipa ted , resu ltin g  in  an  in c rea se  o f n et 
c ap ita l ass ets  o f 1 4 .4%  co m p a red  to  
2 0 0 3.

T h e  n o te  re ce iv a b le  from  th e  C ity  o f 
C o on  R ap ids  fo r the  S um p te r S tree t 
B rid g e P ro je ct, an d  th e n o te  rec eiv ab le  
fro m  th e C om m u n ica tio n s U tility  fo r 
S ta rt-u p  C ap ita l,  d e cre ase d  b y  $ 8 ,8 2 4  a n d 
$ 2 8 ,4 8 2, re sp ec tiv ely, in  2 00 4 .

In  2 0 0 3 , th e  g as u tili ty  ad v a nc ed  

fu n ds  in  the  a m o u n t o f $ 2 14 ,5 84 , to  as sis t 
in  tw o se pa rate  ec o n om ic  d e v elop m en t 
p ro gra m s; o n e  fo r d ev e lo p m en t o f lan d  
fo r c om m e rcial b u sin ess es an d  th e o th er 
fo r d ev e lo p m e n t o f land  fo r s in g le  &  
m u ltip le -fam ily  d w e lling s w ith  th e  C ity  
o f C o o n R ap id s.  T h e ad v an c ed  fu n d s a re  
to  b e rep aid  th rou g h  tax  in cre m e nt 
rev e n ue s.

N a tu ra l G a s  U tili ty  S o u rc e  o f  F u n d s :  $ 1 ,1 5 0 ,0 0 7

R es iden tia l:  3 4.5%

C o m m ercia l:  2 0.0 %

Ind us tria l:  35 .4 %

Interd epart-
m enta l:   0 .3 %

O th er:   0 .2 %

N o no pera tin g
R ev en ue:  5.9%

C h an ge  in N et
A sse ts:  3 .7%

C o st  of G as :  69 .7 %

D ep rec ia tion :  3 .0 %

O th er
O p era ting  E xp en ses:  2 2.7 %

N o no pera tin g E xp enses:  4 .6%

N a tu ra l G a s  U tili ty  U se  o f  F u n d s :  $ 1 ,1 5 0 ,0 0 7
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M a n a g em en t’s  D iscu ss io n  a n d  A n a lys is  (co n tin u ed )

Water U tility
O v e rvie w :

T h e  fin an cia l po sitio n  o f th e  W a te r 
U tility  re m a in e d stab le ov e r the  p rio r 
y ea r, a ltho u g h  th e w ater u tili ty  w ill  b e  
e va lu a tin g  th e  m eth o d  o f d o n atin g  w ater 
to  th e  g o lf  co u rse  a nd  its  im p a ct o n  
fin a n cial s ta te m e nts.

D u e to  lim ited  fin an cia l re so u rce s 
a nd  th e  p o ssib le  f ina n cial b u rd en  of 
e xp e n siv e  testing  req u ire d  b y  th e  S afe  
D rink in g  W a te r A ct (S D WA ), th e  w ater 
u tility  m u s t be  re ad y  to  e v alua te  an d  
im p le m e n t n ew  rev en ue  req u irem e n ts  if  
a dd itio n  testing  is  m a nd ated .

W a te r U tility  F in a n c ia l H ig h lig h ts :
D o lla r s in  th ou san ds

           2 0 0 4           2 0 0 3
C u re n t a n d  O th er  A sse ts .. ... ... ... 2 3 8 . ... ... ... .2 7 2
N e t C a p ita l A sse ts . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 5 6 6 ... ... ... .5 8 8
     To ta l A sset s ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. . 8 0 4 ... ... ... .8 6 0
L o n g - te rm  L iab il itie s . ... ... ... ... ... ... . 1 6 ... ... ... ...2 9
O th e r  L ia b i liti e s ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 2 8 ... ... ... ...3 3
     To ta l L ia b ilit ie s ... ... ... ... ... .. ... . 4 3 ... ... ... ...6 1
N e t A sset s :
  In v e s te d  in  C ap ita l  A sse ts
  N e t o f  R ela ted  D eb t. ... ... ... ... .. 5 6 6 .. ... ... ...9 2
  R e s tr ic te d .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 0 ... .... ... ... .5
  U n r es t r ic te d ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 1 9 4 ... ... ... .7 0 2
     To ta l N et  A sse ts . ... ... ... ... ... ... 7 6 1 ... ... ... .7 9 8
O p e rat in g  R e v e n u es . ... ... ... ... ... ... 1 8 8 ... ... ... .1 8 8
N o n - O p e ra tin g  R e v e n u e s .. ... ... ... ... 6 ... ... ... ... ..9
     To ta l R e v e n u e s .. .. ... ... ... ... ... .. 1 9 5 . ... ... ... .1 9 8
O p e rat in g  E x p e n se s ... ... ... ... ... ... . 1 8 8 . ... ... ... .1 2 1
In te re s t o n  L o n g - te rm  D e b t.. ... ... ... 0 ... ... ... ... ..0
O th e r  N o n -O p era t in g  E x p . ... ... ... . 4 5 ... ... ... ... ..0
     To ta l E x p e n ses . ... ... ... .. ... ... ... 2 3 3 . ... ... ... .1 2 1
     C h an g e  in  N e t A sse ts .. ... ... ... (3 8 ) . ... ... ... ...7 7
N e t A sset s , B eg in n in g . ... ... ... ... .. 7 9 8 ... ... ... .7 2 2
N e t A sset s , E n d in g ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 7 6 1 ... ... ... .7 9 8

R es u lts  o f O p e ra tio n s:
(A s re po rted  in  the  Sta tem ent o f R evenu es , E xpen ses &  C h an ges  in  
F u nd  N e t A s se ts )

R ev e n ue  fro m  w ater sale s fo r 2 0 0 4  
rem ain ed  ste ad y  w ith  on ly  a  0 .2 %  
inc rea se , w hile  to ta l o pera tin g  ex p e ns es 
inc rea se d b y  1 7 .1 % .  C h em ic al a nd  
testin g  ex p en se s in cre as ed  2 2 .8 %  o v e r 
the  p rio r y ea r.

T h e  m ajo rity  o f th e  in cre as e  in  
o p era tin g  ex p e ns es ca n  b e a ttrib u te d  to  

inc rea se d m a in ten a nc e  o f th e  d istr ib u tio n  
sy stem .  In  2 0 0 4 , d istr ib u tio n  
m a inten a n ce  lab o r c o sts  w e re  $ 1 4 ,4 5 0  
h ig h e r tha n  2 0 0 3 , re su lting  in  a  11 3.5 %  
inc rea se  fro m  th e p rio r y e ar.

In  th e  la st tw o y ea rs , the  w a te r u tility  
h as  h ad  to  re p la ce  th e  p um p  a nd  m otor 
fo r b o th  prim a ry  w e lls a n d  o n e 
e m erge n cy  w ell.

W a te r  U ti lity  To ta l E x p e n ses:   $ 2 3 2 ,8 4 3W a te r  U ti lity  To ta l R ev e n u es :  $ 1 9 5 ,2 5 2
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F in an cia l P o sitio n :
(A s re po rted  o n  th e  S ta tem e nt o f N e t A s se ts )

In  2 0 0 4 , n e t ca p ita l a sse ts  rep re sen ts  
7 0 .4 %  o f to ta l as sets .  T h e W a te r U tility  
m a intain s a  ca pita l re plac em en t /  
im p ro ve m e n t fu nd  for h yd ra nts , p u m p s 
a nd  m o tors, a s  w ell as  a  rep lac em en t 
fu n d fo r eq u ip m e nt.

In  2 0 0 3 , th e  w ate r u tili ty  ad v a nced  
fu n ds  in  the  a m o u n t o f $ 5 0 ,3 1 6 , to  a ssis t  

in  tw o se pa rate  ec o n om ic  d e v elo pm en t 
p ro gra m s; on e  fo r d e ve lo p m en t o f lan d  
fo r c om m e rcial b u sin ess es an d  th e o th e r 
fo r d ev e lo p m e n t o f land  fo r s in g le  &  
m u ltip le-fam ily  d w e llin g s w ith  th e  C ity  
o f C o o n  R ap id s.  T h e ad v an c ed  fu n d s are  
to  b e rep aid  th rou g h  tax  in c rem en t 
rev e n ue s.

R es iden tia l:  4 0.7%

C o m m ercia l:  1 5.3 %
Interd epart-
m enta l:   1 .0 %

O th er:   6 .2 %

N o n O pera tin g
R ev en ue:  2.8%

C h an ge  in N et
A sse ts:  1 6.1 %

D o nated
C i ty:  1 .6%

D o nated
G o lf:   1 6.2%

W a te r  U t ility  S o u rce  o f  F u n ds :   $ 2 3 2 ,8 4 3 W a te r  U t ility  U se  o f  F u n d s :  $ 2 3 2 ,8 4 3

U tili ties:  7 .6%

D ep rec ia tion :  1 9 .8 %

O th er O pera tin g
E xp en ses:  5 3.2 %

N o no pera tin g E xp enses:  19 .4 %
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M a n a g em en t’s  D iscu ss io n  a n d  A n a lys is  (co n tin u ed )

Wastew ater U tility
O v e rvie w :

T h e  fin an cial p o sitio n  o f th e  
W a ste w ate r U tility  rem ain ed  sta b le  o v er 
the  p rio r y ea r.

T h e  w a stew a te r u tility  m ay  
e xp e rie n ce  sig nific an t c ap ita l 
e xp e n diture s in  th e  ne ar fu tu re .

T h e  w a stew a te r u tility  h a s 
im p le m e n te d  a  p la n  o f a ction  to  m itiga te  
inflo w  a n d in filtra tio n  fro m  its  co lle ction  
sy stem .  T h e p lan  id e ntif ie d  se ve ral a rea s 
in  n ee d  o f s tru ctu ra l rep a ir  an d /o r 
rep lac em en t.  T h e p rim a ry lif t s ta tio n  a n d  
fo rce  m a in  to  th e  lag o o ns  h av e  a ls o  b ee n 
e va lu a te d  fo r c ap a city  re q u irem en ts a n d  
m a y  n e ed  u p g rad ed .

W a stew a te r U tility  F in a n c ia l H ig h lig h ts:
D o lla r s in  th ou san ds

           2 0 0 4           2 0 0 3
C u re n t  a n d  O th er  A sse ts .. ... ... . 1 ,2 4 1 .. ... .. ..1 ,2 1 4
N e t C a p ita l A sse ts . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 7 2 3 ... ... ... .7 2 7
     To ta l A sset s ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 1 ,9 6 4 . ... ... .1 ,9 4 1
L o n g -te rm  L iab il itie s . ... ... ... ... ... ... . 0 . ... ... ... ... ..0
O th e r  L ia b i liti e s ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 1 0 . ... ... ... ... ..7
     To ta l L ia b ilit ie s ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 1 0 ... ... ... ... ..7
N e t A sset s :
  In v e s te d  in  C a p ita l  A sse ts
  N e t o f  R ela ted  D eb t. ... ... ... ... ... . 7 1 9 . ... ... ... .5 0 0
  R e s tr ic te d .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ..... ... .. 0 .. ... ... ... ...3
  U n r es t r ic te d . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 1 ,2 3 5 ... ... .1 ,4 3 1
     To ta l N et  A sse ts . ... ... ... ... ... . 1 ,9 5 4 . ... ... .1 ,9 3 4
O p e rat in g  R e v e n u es . ... ... ... ... ... ... 1 1 0 .. ... ... ..1 1 0
N o n - O p e ra tin g  R e v e n u e s .. ... ... ... ...1 4 ... ... ... ...1 6
     To ta l R e v e n u e s .. ... ... ... ... .. ... .. 1 2 4 ... ... ... .1 2 6
O p e rat in g  E x p e n se s ... ... ... ... ... ... . 8 8 .. ... ... ...6 0
In te re s t o n  L o n g - te rm  D e b t... ... ... .. 0 ... ... ... ... ..0
O th e r  N o n -O p era t in g  E x p . ... ... ... . 1 7 ... ... ... ... ..0
     To ta l E x p e n ses . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 1 0 5 .... ... ... .6 0
     C h an g e  in  N e t A sse ts .. ... ... ... ... 1 9 . ... ... ... ...6 6
N e t A sset s , B eg in n in g . ... ... ... ... .1 ,9 3 4 .. ... .1 ,8 6 8
N e t A sset s , E n d in g ... ... ... ... ... ... 1 ,9 5 4 ... ... .1 ,9 3 4

R es u lts  o f O p er a tio n s:
(A s rep or ted  in  the  Sta tem ent o f R evenu es , E xpen se s &  C ha ng es  in  
F u nd  N e t A s se ts )

R ev e nu e  fro m  w as te w ater sa les  fo r 
2 0 0 4 rem ain ed  s te ad y  w ith  o nly  a  0 .3 %  
inc rea se , w h ile  to ta l o p era tin g  ex p en s es 
d ec rea sed  b y 1 2 .8 % .

P lan t m ainte na n ce /o p e ra tio n s 
e xp e n ses in c rea sed  2 2.8 % , w h ile  

d is tr ib ution  la b or ex p en se s de cre as ed  b y  
2 8 .7 % .

In te rest in co m e de cre as ed  b y  1 4 .1 %  
d u e to  lo w er in tere st ra tes .

W a ste w a te r  U ti lity  To ta l E x p e n se s :  $ 1 0 5 ,0 2 1W a s te w a te r  U ti lity  To ta l R ev e n u e s :  $ 1 2 4 ,3 5 3
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F in an cia l P o sitio n :
(A s re po rted  o n  th e  S ta tem en t o f N e t A sse ts )

In  2 0 0 4 , n e t ca p ita l a sse ts  rep re sen ts  
3 6 .8 %  o f to ta l as sets .

In  2 0 0 3 , th e  w as te w ater u tili ty  
a dv a n ce d fu nd s in  th e  am o u n t of 
$ 1 3 8,2 64 , to  a ssis t in  tw o  sep a rate  
e co n o m ic de v elo p m en t p ro g ram s; o ne  fo r 

d ev e lo p m e n t o f lan d  fo r c o m m e rcial 
b u sin e sse s a n d  the  o th er fo r de v elo p m en t 
o f lan d  fo r s in g le  &  m ultip le-fa m ily  
d w ellin g s w ith  th e  C ity  o f C o on  R a p id s.  
T h e  a d va n ce d  fu n d s a re  to  b e  re pa id  
thro u g h  tax  in cre m e n t rev en u e s.

T h e  n o te  re ce iv a b le  from  th e  C ity  o f 
C o on  R ap ids  fo r the  S um p te r S tre et 
B rid g e P ro je ct d e cre ase d  b y  $ 2 2 ,0 5 7  in  
2 0 0 4.  T h e  o rig in al a m o u n t o f the  lo an  
w a s $ 2 5 0 ,0 0 0 .

W a ste w a te r  U ti lity  S o u r ce  o f F u n d s :  $ 1 2 4 ,3 5 3

R es iden tia l:  7 3.7%

C o m m ercia l:  1 4.9 %

O th er:   0 .2 %

O th er O pera tin g
E xp en ses:  3 7.3 %

D ep rec ia tion :  3 3 .5 %

N o no pera tin g E xp ense :  1 3 .6%

C h an ge  in N et  A sse ts:   1 5.5%
N o no pera tin g R ev enu e:  11 .2 %

W a ste w a te r  U ti lity  U se  o f  F u n d s :   $ 1 2 4 ,3 5 3
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2004

Communications:
Communications: Cable TV,

Telephone Internet & Pagers
Assets Utility Utility

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 580,048 175,784
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance) -

Trade 68,313 16,008
Other 134,523 81

Loans Receivable, Current Portion 0 0
Interutility Loans, Current Portion 0 0
Inventories 1,578 5,876
Other Current and Prepaid Assets 0 2,402

Total Current Assets 784,462 200,151

Restricted Funds and Other Assets:
Restricted Cash Funds 0 0
Patronage Dividend Due from NIMECA 0 0
Investment - Iowa Stored Energy Project 0 0
Loans Receivable, Net of Current Portion -

Loan to City of Coon Rapids 0 0
Loan to Coon Rapids Development Group 0 0
Tax Increment Financing 0 0

Interutility Loans, Net of Current Portion 0 0
Prepaid Rent, Net of Current Portion 0 0
Municipal Building, Equipment and Land,
  Net of Accumulated Depreciation 0 0

Total Restricted Funds and Other Assets 0 0

Capital Assets:
Utility Plant, Facilities and Equipment 5,012 278,272
Accumulated Depreciation (897) (217,668)

4,115 60,604
Construction in Progress 0 0

Net Capital Assets 4,115 60,604

Total Assets 788,577 260,755
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Exhibit A

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Electric Gas Water Wastewater
Utility Utility Utility Utility Total

1,221,894 336,177 150,493 895,964 3,360,360

166,067 32,623 16,625 12,913 312,549
59,445 26,715 6,787 0 227,551
17,393 38,322 6,844 41,636 104,195

0 29,790 0 0 29,790
185,450 50,760 14,207 191 258,062
30,304 15,406 4,208 1,202 53,522

1,680,553 529,793 199,164 951,906 4,346,029

952,574 853,642 0 0 1,806,216
12,802 0 0 0 12,802

0 20,000 0 0 20,000

0 73,518 0 183,835 257,353
90,721 0 0 0 90,721
31,908 163,962 38,446 105,647 339,963

0 150,836 0 0 150,836
7,778 7,778 0 0 15,556

160,102 210,930 0 0 371,032

1,255,885 1,480,666 38,446 289,482 3,064,479

11,410,809 1,224,256 1,339,646 1,615,780 15,873,775
(3,758,401) (673,233) (773,369) (929,229) (6,352,797)

7,652,408 551,023 566,277 686,551 9,520,978
101,697 4,917 0 36,168 142,782

7,754,105 555,940 566,277 722,719 9,663,760

10,690,543 2,566,399 803,887 1,964,107 17,074,268

(Continued)
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2004

Communications:
Communications: Cable TV,

Telephone Internet & Pagers
Liabilities Utility Utility

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - Trade 43,896 13,065
Other Payables and Credits 74 16
Contracts Payable 0 0
Payroll, Sales and Use Taxes Payable 9,379 1,030
Payable from Restricted Assets:

Customer Deposits 0 0
Electric Revenue Bonds Payable (Net), Current Portion 0 0
Electric Capital Notes Payable, Current Portion 0 0
Accrued Interest 0 0

Compensated Absences 2,697 3,281
Interutility Loans, Current Portion 0 29,790
Deferred Rent Revenue, Current Portion 0 0

Total Current Liabilities 56,046 47,182

Long-term Obligations, Net of Current Portion:
Electric Revenue Bonds Payable, Net of 
  Unamortized Discount - Series 1998 0 0
Electric Capital Notes Payable 0 0
Interutility Loans 0 150,836
Deferred Rent Revenue 0 0

Total Long-term Obligations 0 150,836

Total Liabilities 56,046 198,018

Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 4,115 60,604
Restricted For:

Revenue Bond and Note Retirement 0 0
Revenue Bond Contingency 0 0

Unrestricted 728,416 2,133

Total Net Assets 732,531 62,737

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 788,577 260,755

See independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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Exhibit A

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Electric Gas Water Wastewater
Utility Utility Utility Utility Total

70,055 45,421 8,959 4,486 185,882
31,897 15,898 7 6 47,898
4,815 70,628 0 3,598 79,041
9,128 4,063 1,979 870 26,449

19,563 0 0 0 19,563
181,773 0 0 0 181,773
130,000 0 0 0 130,000
14,340 0 0 0 14,340
11,827 6,309 3,482 1,492 29,088

0 0 0 0 29,790
0 0 13,333 0 13,333

473,398 142,319 27,760 10,452 757,157

2,521,225 0 0 0 2,521,225
1,670,000 0 0 0 1,670,000

0 0 0 0 150,836
0 0 15,556 0 15,556

4,191,225 0 15,556 0 4,357,617

4,664,623 142,319 43,316 10,452 5,114,774

3,226,429 469,416 566,277 719,121 5,045,962

421,837 0 0 0 421,837
150,000 0 0 0 150,000

2,227,654 1,954,664 194,294 1,234,534 6,341,695

6,025,920 2,424,080 760,571 1,953,655 11,959,494

10,690,543 2,566,399 803,887 1,964,107 17,074,268
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Communications:
Communications: Cable TV,

Telephone Internet & Pagers
Utility Utility

Operating Revenues:
Sales to Customers 975,721         292,212         
Sales for Resale 0 0
Interdepartmental Sales 0 0
Forfeited Discounts 7,060             0
Rebates and Other 0 78                  

Total Operating Revenues 982,781         292,290         

Operating Expenses:
Plant Operation Expenses:

Cost of Power, Gas and Programming 448,114 146,654
Joint Use Expense 173,000 0
Chemicals and Testing 0 0
Transmission Expense 0 0
Salaries and Wages 187 3,297
Utilities 10,090 4,874
Maintenance 0 0

631,391 154,825

Distribution Operation Expenses:
Salaries and Wages 20,633 34,148
Line and Station Supplies 32 1,326
Safety Expense 317 186
Maintenance of Lines and Meters 900 1,652
Miscellaneous Distribution Expense 0 0

21,882 37,312

Consumer Service Expenses:
Salaries and Wages 11,554 10,870
Accounting and Collecting Supplies 25,573 13,809
Uncollectible Accounts 61,416 646

98,543 25,325
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Exhibit B

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Electric Gas Water Wastewater
Utility Utility Utility Utility Total

1,306,792      1,033,594      172,098         110,208         3,890,625
616,168         0 0 0 616,168
47,368           3,916             2,249             0 53,533
3,253             782                202                193                11,490
3,513             1,000             14,267           0 18,858

1,977,094      1,039,292      188,816         110,401         4,590,674

861,010 801,419 0 0 2,257,197
0 0 0 0 173,000
0 0 7,390 532 7,922

48,099 0 0 0 48,099
655 363 12,562 2,861 19,925

11,054 7,835 17,754 6,949 58,556
435 0 4,751 0 5,186

921,253 809,617 42,457 10,342 2,569,885

110,127 48,380 27,183 12,432 252,903
2,943 3,924 132 40 8,397
1,414 1,443 327 132 3,819

11,554 9,650 6,412 1,585 31,753
6,667 6,667 0 0 13,334

132,705 70,064 34,054 14,189 310,206

34,571 20,548 14,044 5,024 96,611
8,370 4,291 2,241 780 55,064
2,185 2,176 595 573 67,591

45,126 27,015 16,880 6,377 219,266

(Continued)
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Communications:
Communications: Cable TV,

Telephone Internet & Pagers
Utility Utility

Operating Expenses: (Continued)
Administrative and General Expenses:

Salaries and Wages 14,182 12,263
Telephone 641 842
Professional Services 6,369 325
Legal and Public Notices 108 329
Insurance 1,955 3,181
Regulatory Commission Expense 14,237 155
Advertising 11,779 58
Trustee Salaries 0 720
Travel and Training 818 1,875
Dues and Assessments 3,441 96
Energy Conservation Expense 0 0
Miscellaneous 1,198 4,185
Municipal Building Expense 0 0
Transportation Expense 934 1,241
General Maintenance 987 1,548
Property Taxes 9,386 0
In-Lieu-Of-Tax Payments 6,936 235
Employee Taxes and Benefits 14,140 18,159

87,111 45,212

Depreciation 425 10,457

Total Operating Expenses 839,352 273,131

Operating Income (Loss) 143,429 19,159
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Exhibit B

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Electric Gas Water Wastewater
Utility Utility Utility Utility Total

47,113 25,897 13,870 4,660 117,985
3,399 1,917 1,030 344 8,173

21,613 5,730 851 519 35,407
1,274 644 316 118 2,789

29,380 7,502 3,416 1,113 46,547
1,576 1,017 165 0 17,150
1,666 1,738 172 0 15,413

720 720 720 720 3,600
7,249 2,506 1,534 1,105 15,087
2,314 6,715 209 0 12,775
3,176 2,093 0 0 5,269
3,314 4,171 1,460 319 14,647

12,057 12,797 0 0 24,854
5,714 2,745 1,549 485 12,668
7,014 8,098 2,668 962 21,277

17,835 534 0 0 27,755
48,533 36,827 4,581 0 97,112
67,470 37,480 18,637 8,138 164,024

281,417 159,131 51,178 18,483 642,532

309,698 34,640 46,023 41,692 442,935

1,690,199 1,100,467 190,592 91,083 4,184,824

286,895 (61,175) (1,776) 19,318 405,850

(Continued)
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Communications:
Communications: Cable TV,

Telephone Internet & Pagers
Utility Utility

Operating Income (Loss) 143,429 19,159

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Merchandise Sales - Net 17,825 (2,946)
Municipal Building - Rent and City Reimbursements 0 0
Joint Use Revenue 0 0
Miscellaneous Nonoperating Revenue 26,335 1,994
Net Gain (Loss) on Sale or Disposal of Assets 0 0
Recovery of Discount on TIF Receivable 0 0
Interest Income 2,804 1,114
Interest Expense 0 (8,827)
Discount on TIF Receivable 0 0
Free Community Service (87) (507)

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 46,877 (9,172)

Change in Net Assets 190,306 9,987

Total Net Assets - July 1, 2003, As Restated 542,225 52,750

Total Net Assets - June 30, 2004 732,531 62,737

See independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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Exhibit B

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Electric Gas Water Wastewater
Utility Utility Utility Utility Total

286,895 (61,175) (1,776) 19,318 405,850

498 957 957 0 17,291
13,047 6,440 4,180 0 23,667

173,000 0 0 0 173,000
13,952 (2) (26) 0 42,253
1,886 (3,082) 0 0 (1,196)

0 40,050 0 0 40,050
21,900 20,160 1,298 13,952 61,228

(223,527) 0 0 0 (232,354)
(4,171) (21,433) (5,026) (13,810) (44,440)

(13,952) (25,022) (37,198) (128) (76,894)

(17,367) 18,068 (35,815) 14 2,605

269,528 (43,107) (37,591) 19,332 408,455

5,756,392 2,467,187 798,162 1,934,323 11,551,039

6,025,920 2,424,080 760,571 1,953,655 11,959,494
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Communications:
Communications: Cable TV,

Telephone Internet & Pagers
Utility Utility

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers and Users 1,103,854 290,469
Cash Received from Interdepartmental Sales 0 0
Cash Received from Other Revenues - Net 44,160 (952)
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services (854,531) (179,736)
Cash Paid for Interdepartmental Services 0 0
Cash Paid for In-Lieu-Of-Tax Payments (6,936) (235)
Cash Paid to Employees (45,979) (60,870)
Cash Paid for Employee Benefits (9,327) (19,193)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 231,241 29,483

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Increase in Patronage Dividend Receivable 0 0
Increase in Customer Deposits 0 0
Transfers to City of Coon Rapids - Free Community Service (87) (507)

Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities (87) (507)

 
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 0 0
Capital and Construction in Progress Expenditures (3,993) (1,617)
Hail Insurance Proceeds Received 0 0
Principal Payments on Long-term Debt 0 (28,482)
Interest Paid on Debt 0 (8,827)

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related
Financing Activities (3,993) (38,926)
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Exhibit C

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Electric Gas Water Wastewater
Utility Utility Utility Utility Total

1,858,500 1,028,740 184,623 111,556 4,577,742
47,368 3,916 2,249 0 53,533

200,497 7,395 5,111 0 256,211
(1,041,319) (877,739) (57,489) (12,473) (3,023,287)

(47,368) (3,916) (2,249) 0 (53,533)
(48,533) (36,827) (4,581) 0 (97,112)

(193,290) (96,238) (68,336) (25,297) (490,010)
(67,899) (38,689) (18,943) (7,779) (161,830)

707,956 (13,358) 40,385 66,007 1,061,714

(626) 0 0 0 (626)
6,458 0 0 0 6,458

(13,952) (25,022) (37,198) (128) (76,894)

(8,120) (25,022) (37,198) (128) (71,062)

1,886 0 0 0 1,886
(164,746) (37,920) (24,649) (38,557) (271,482)

19,863 15,896 0 0 35,759
(296,771) 0 0 0 (325,253)
(227,050) 0 0 0 (235,877)

(666,818) (22,024) (24,649) (38,557) (794,967)

(Continued)
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Communications:
Communications: Cable TV,

Telephone Internet & Pagers
Utility Utility

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest on Investments 2,804 1,114
Recovery of Discount on TIF Receivable 0 0
Principal Received on:

Interutility Loans 0 0
City of Coon Rapids Loan 0 0
Coon Rapids Development Group Loan 0 0

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 2,804 1,114

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 229,965 (8,836)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - July 1, 2003 350,083 184,620

Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30, 2004 580,048 175,784
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Exhibit C

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Electric Gas Water Wastewater
Utility Utility Utility Utility Total

21,900 20,160 1,298 13,952 61,228
0 40,050 0 0 40,050

0 28,482 0 0 28,482
0 8,824 0 22,057 30,881

11,438 0 0 0 11,438

33,338 97,516 1,298 36,009 172,079

66,356 37,112 (20,164) 63,331 367,764

2,108,112 1,152,707 170,657 832,633 4,798,812

2,174,468 1,189,819 150,493 895,964 5,166,576

(Continued)
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Communications:
Communications: Cable TV,

Telephone Internet & Pagers
Utility Utility

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)  (Exhibit B) 143,429 19,159
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 425 10,457
Other Revenues 44,160 (952)
Non-cash Expense 0 0
(Increase) Decrease in:

Accounts Receivable 58,887 (1,813)
Inventories (378) (1,196)
Other Current and Prepaid Assets 23 (82)
Prepaid Rent, Noncurrent 0 0

Increase (Decrease) in:
Deferred Rent Revenue 0 0
Accounts and Other Payables (20,695) 4,516
Compensated Absences 577 428
Payroll, Sales and Use Taxes Payable 4,813 (1,034)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 231,241 29,483

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents at Year End to
Specific Assets Included on the Statement of Net Assets:

Current Assets:
Cash and Pooled Investments 580,048 175,784

Restricted Assets:
Cash and Pooled Investments

Customer Deposits 0 0
Electric Revenue Bond and Interest Sinking 0 0
Electric Revenue Debt Service Reserve 0 0
Electric Revenue Capital Improvement 0 0
Electric Revenue Capital Loan Note Sinking 0 0
Economic Reserve 0 0
Nimeca Contingency 0 0

Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30, 2004 580,048 175,784

See independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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Exhibit C

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Electric Gas Water Wastewater
Utility Utility Utility Utility Total

286,895 (61,175) (1,776) 19,318 405,850

309,698 34,640 46,023 41,692 442,935
200,497 7,395 5,111 0 256,211

1,029 1,029 0 0 2,058

(70,235) (6,370) 11,636 1,369 (6,526)
(49,536) (5,007) (1,673) (191) (57,981)
(1,351) (2,031) (808) (866) (5,115)
6,666 6,667 0 0 13,333

0 0 (13,333) 0 (13,333)
24,826 13,033 (4,532) 3,926 21,074

(104) (330) 43 400 1,014
(429) (1,209) (306) 359 2,194

707,956 (13,358) 40,385 66,007 1,061,714

1,221,894 336,177 150,493 895,964 3,360,360

19,563           0 0 0 19,563
32,242           0 0 0 32,242

378,360         0 0 0 378,360
150,077         685,763         0 0 835,840
24,265           0 0 0 24,265

203,019         167,879         0 0 370,898
145,048         0 0 0 145,048

2,174,468 1,189,819 150,493 895,964 5,166,576
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Budgetary Comparison Schedule of Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in Balances -
Budget and Actual (Cash Basis)

Proprietary Funds

Required Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Budgeted Final
Amounts Budget to
Original Actual

Actual and Final Variance
Receipts:

Use of Money and Property 61,228           
Charges for Service 4,893,318      
Miscellaneous 148,496         

Total Receipts 5,103,042      4,275,225      827,817         

Disbursements:
Business Type Activities:

Operating Expenses 3,825,772      
Transfers to City of Coon Rapids 76,894           
Capital Outlay 271,482         
Principal Redemption 325,253         
Interest Payments 235,877         

Total Disbursements 4,735,278      4,663,044      (72,234)          

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts
Over (Under) Disbursements 367,764         (387,819)        755,583         

Balance, beginning of year 4,798,812      1,830,300      

Balance, end of year 5,166,576      1,442,481      

See independent auditors' report.
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation
Proprietary Funds

Required Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Enterprise Funds

Cash Accrual Accrual
Basis Adjustments Basis

Receipts / Revenues 5,103,042      (156,075)        4,946,967

Disbursements / Expenses 4,735,278      (196,766)        4,538,512

Net 367,764         40,691           408,455         

Beginning Net Assets, as Restated 4,798,812      6,752,227      11,551,039

Ending Net Assets 5,166,576      6,792,918      11,959,494    

See independent auditors' report.
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Schedule 1

1998 Series Revenue Bonds

Electric Revenue -  Bond and Interest Sinking Fund

Balance - July 1, 2003 26,639
Deposits 296,618
Interest Earned 791
Transfers In 3,233
Principal and Interest Paid on Bonds (295,039)
Transfers Out and Withdrawals 0

Balance - June 30, 2004 32,242

Electric Revenue -  Debt Service Reserve Fund

Balance - July 1, 2003 378,360
Deposits 0
Interest Earned 2,271
Transfers Out and Withdrawals (2,271)

Balance - June 30, 2004 378,360

Electric Revenue - Capital Improvements Fund

Balance - July 1, 2003 150,089
Deposits 0
Interest Earned 900
Transfers Out and Withdrawals (912)

Balance - June 30, 2004 150,077

2003 Capital Loan Notes

Electric Revenue - Capital Loan Note Sinking Fund

Balance - July 1, 2003 24,254
Deposits 0
Interest Earned 61
Transfers Out and Withdrawals (50)

Balance - June 30, 2004 24,265

See independent auditors' report.

Schedule of Changes in Revenue Bond and Capital Loan Note Required Funds 

COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2004
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Schedule 2
COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Schedule of Insurance Coverage
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Limits of Coverage

Expiration (Each Occurrence/
Type of Coverage - All Utility Systems Date Aggregate)

Property Coverage (Replacement Costs) - Fire and Extended 04-01-2005
Coverage ($5,000 Deductible, 90% Co-Insurance) -

Electric Facilities, Buildings and Contents 3,481,677
Peak Shaving Plant and Contents 97,332
Water Treatment Plant and Contents 239,000
Water Tower and Contents 445,000
Cable Television Building and Contents 111,063
Maintenance Garage Building and Contents 335,518
Municipal Building - Building and Contents 1,288,305
Telecommunications Building - Building and Contents 1,224,000
Telecommunications Building - Generator Plant 3,663,541

Comprehensive General Liability - 04-01-2005
Bodily Injury  1,000,000/2,000,000
Property Damage  1,000,000/2,000,000
Fire Damage 100,000
Medical Expense 5,000
Employee Benefits 100,000

Comprehensive Auto Policy - 04-01-2005
Bodily Injury 1,000,000
Property Damage 1,000,000
Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists 50,000
Collision ($1,000 Universal Motorists Deductible)  ACV
Comprehensive (No Deductible)  ACV

Umbrella (Wrongful Act) Liability ($10,000 Deductible) 04-01-2005  2,000,000/2,000,000
Linebacker Liability (1,500 Deductible) 04-01-2005  1,000,000/2,000,000
Workmen's Compensation 04-01-2005 Statutory
Inland Marine (Coverage is City and Utilities) 04-01-2005 233,492
Boiler and Machinery Breakdown 10-08-2004 1,500,000

Surety Bond On - 01-01-2005
Manager 250,000
Assistant Manager 150,000
Comptroller 150,000
Bookkeeper 5,000
Bookkeeper Assistant 5,000
Public Employee 2,500

See independent auditors' report.
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COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

-34-

Note 1  - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities (CRMU) is governed by a three-member Board of
Trustees that are appointed by the Mayor of the City of Coon Rapids, Iowa, with the approval
of the City Council.  Services provided are communications (telephone, cable TV, internet and
pager), electric, natural gas, water and wastewater.  CRMU’s financial statements are prepared
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

A.  Reporting Entity

Criteria specified by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board have been applied in
determining the scope of the reporting entity for financial reporting purposes.  Specifically,
those offices and activities over which the Board of Trustees exercises oversight
responsibility are included in these financial statements.  Manifestations of oversight
responsibility over an entity include:  (1) financial interdependency, (2) selection of
governing authority, (3) designation of management, (4) ability to significantly influence
operations, and (5) accountability for fiscal matters.

In accordance with GASB 14, CRMU has been identified as a component unit of the
City of Coon Rapids.

B.  Shared Utility Plant

CRMU, as a member of the North Iowa Municipal Electric Cooperative Association
(NIMECA), entered into an agreement with Corn Belt Power Cooperative to provide
NIMECA and its participating members with a long-term right and access to electric
transmission facilities necessary to handle the combined needs of the participating
members through undivided ownership interests in the capacity of transmission facilities.
The costs associated with this agreement were allocated to the members based on their
proportionate use of the shared transmission system and have been recorded by CRMU as
capital assets in the Electric Utility Fund.  The net book value at June 30, 2004 was
$435,338.  In connection with this agreement, NIMECA established a Common
Transmission System (CTS) Capital Improvement Fund in order to provide for major
repairs or capital improvements made to the Common Transmission System.

Additionally, CRMU is one of fourteen owners in Unit 4 George Neal Generating Station
which is managed in accordance with the terms of the basic generating agreement between
MidAmerican Energy and the owners.  CRMU, as a tenant-in-common, owns 0.521 percent
of the generating station for generating, purchasing, obtaining by exchange, or otherwise
acquiring or transmitting electric power and energy.  CRMU’s share of the costs of this
generating station has been recorded as capital assets in the Electric Utility Fund.  The net
book value at June 30, 2004 was $866,247.



COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004
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Note 1  - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

B.  Shared Utility Plant  (Continued)

CRMU is required to pay its pro rata share of operations and maintenance costs, net of
revenues earned, for both of these shared plant facilities.  Separate financial statements for
these shared plant facilities are available in the offices of CRMU.

C.  Basis of Presentation

Basic Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Assets report information on CRMU’s business type activities which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for services. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents CRMU’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
reported as net assets.  Net assets are reported in three categories.

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and
other debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets.

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either
externally imposed or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets not meeting the definition of the two
preceding categories.  Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources
imposed by management, which can be removed or modified.

Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of CRMU are organized on the basis of proprietary funds, each of which is
considered to be a separate accounting entity and each reported in a separate column in
the financial statements.  The operations of each fund are accounted for by a separate set
of self-balancing accounts, which comprise its assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and
expenses.



COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004
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Note 1  - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

C. Basis of Presentation 

Fund Financial Statements  (Continued)

CRMU reports the following major proprietary funds:

Enterprise:

The Communications: Telephone Fund is used to account for the operation and
maintenance of the Utilities’ telephone system.

The Communications: Cable TV, Internet, Pager Fund is used to account for the
operation and maintenance of the Utilities’ cable TV, internet and pager systems.

The Electric Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the
Utilities’ electric system.

The Gas Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the Utilities’
gas system.

The Water Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the
Utilities’ water system.

The Wastewater Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the
Utilities’ wastewater treatment and sanitary sewer system.

D.  Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

CRMU’s proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when
earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows.

CRMU applies all applicable GASB pronouncements, as well as the following
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements:  Financial Accounting Standards Board
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting
Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure.



COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004
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Note 1  - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

D.  Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting  (Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the Utility’s Enterprise Funds are charges to customers
for sales and services.  Operating expenses for Enterprise Funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

E.  Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets

The following accounting policies are followed in preparing the financial statements:

Cash, Pooled Investments and Cash Equivalents

The various proprietary funds of CRMU combine their cash funds into several shared
bank accounts at one financial institution.  Interest earned on investments is divided
among the proprietary funds.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all short-term cash investments that are
highly liquid (including restricted assets) are considered to be cash equivalents.  Cash
equivalents are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and, at the day of
purchase, have a maturity date no longer than three months.

Customer Accounts, Unbilled Usage and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded in the Enterprise Funds at the time the service is billed.
Unbilled receivables for Communications - Telephone for service consumed between
periodic scheduled billing dates was estimated by management and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the service was provided.  There were no unbilled
receivables at year-end for the other Enterprise Funds as meters are read at the end of
each month and revenues from those readings are recorded as of that month. 

The allowance for doubtful accounts for all Enterprise Funds amounted to $60,222 at
June 30, 2004.
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Note 1  - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

E.  Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets  (Continued)

Inventories

Material and supplies inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, using the
first-in, first-out method and amounted to $225,964 at June 30, 2004, for all Enterprise
funds of CRMU.  The Electric and Gas Utility funds also carry fuel inventories in
connection with the local plants and Unit 4 George Neal Generating Station that
amounted to $32,098 at June 30, 2004.  The amount for the Unit 4 George Neal
Generating Station represents only CRMU’s joint ownership share.

Inventories are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.  As
detailed in Note 22, restatements were made to various utility funds to correct errors in
the proper accumulation of inventory costs in previous years.

Restricted Assets

Funds set aside for payment of Enterprise Fund revenue bonds and capital loan notes are
classified as restricted assets since their use is restricted by applicable bond and note
indentures.  Other restricted assets include customer deposits restricted for application to
unpaid customer accounts or for refund to customers.  In addition, restricted assets
include funds held for future capital improvements or for other uses at the discretion of
the Board of Trustees.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment are stated at cost.  The cost
of system additions includes labor to remove and install and, if applicable, engineering,
interim financing interest and other related costs.  The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs of property and replacements and renewals of the system, which do not
significantly add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not
capitalized but are charged to operating expense as incurred. 

CRMU does not have a written policy for capitalizing assets.  Management determines
capitalization or expensing on an individual basis.

Interest costs on debt are capitalized where proceeds are used to finance the construction
of assets.  Interest earned on proceeds of tax exempt borrowing arrangements restricted
to the acquisition of qualifying assets is offset against interest costs in determining the
amount to be capitalized.  No interest costs were capitalized for the year ended
June 30, 2004, as no qualifying assets were acquired.
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Note 1  - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

E.  Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets

Capital Assets  (Continued)

Depreciation of capital assets is calculated using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives ranging from 4 to 50 years.

CRMU capitalizes direct labor, material costs, interest costs and other related costs used
to construct improvements.  Incomplete projects at June 30, 2004 have been classified as
construction in progress.  No depreciation is calculated for construction in progress.

Discount on Bonds

The 1998 series electric revenue bonds were issued at a discount.  The discount is being
amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the bonds and amounts to
$3,227 per year.  Bonds payable are reflected net of the unamortized discount, which
amounted to $32,002 at June 30, 2004.

Compensated Absences

CRMU employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on length of
employment.  Vacation hours are accumulated on a calendar year basis with a limited
amount of carryover to subsequent years allowed.  Earned but unused vacation hours
will be paid upon termination, retirement or death.  The compensated absences liability
for earned but unused vacation hours has been computed based on rates of pay in effect
at June 30, 2004.  Sick leave is not paid on termination, retirement or death; therefore,
no accrual has been made for accumulated sick leave hours.

Long-term Obligations

In the basic financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.

F. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.  As of the date of the issuance of the accompanying financial statements,
no material changes to the estimates used therein were anticipated by management in the
near term.
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Note 1  - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  (Continued)

G. Allocations

CRMU allocates certain expenses based on a three-year rolling average of personnel hours
for each utility, except for those expenses determined to be for a specific fund or funds. 
The rolling average is updated each pay period.

H. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Required Supplementary
Information.  During the year ended June 30, 2004, disbursements for CRMU exceeded the
amounts budgeted for their operations in the business type activities function.  However,
CRMU’s budget is included in the budget for the City of Coon Rapids as a component unit
of the City; therefore, we were unable to determine if the overall budget for business type
activities was exceeded for the year ended June 30, 2004.

Note 2  - Cash and Pooled Investments

CRMU's deposits in banks at June 30, 2004, were entirely covered by federal depository
insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa.
This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be
no loss of public funds.

CRMU is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of
deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of Trustees; prime
eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase
agreements; certain registered open-end management investment companies; certain joint
investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage district.

At June 30, 2004, the Electric Utility had investments in the Iowa Public Agency Investment
Trust held in the NIMECA CTS Improvement Fund, which are valued at an amortized cost of
$109,598 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1940.  Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 3 requires investments to be categorized to give an
indication of the level of risk assumed by CRMU at year end.  CRMU’s investment in the Iowa
Public Agency Investment Trust is not subject to risk categorization.

CRMU’s other investments are category 1, which means that the investments are insured or
registered or the securities are held by CRMU or its agent in CRMU’s name.
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Note 3 - Communications (Telephone) Accounts Receivable - Other

Accounts Receivable - Other for the Communications (Telephone) Utility includes CABs
billings for the telephone system amounting to $104,321 at June 30, 2004.  An allowance
account has been set up in the amount of $50,817 at June 30, 2004, and management believes
the allowance to be a reasonable and appropriate reduction of the CABs receivables to their net
realizable value.

In addition, at June 30, 2004, CRMU had overpaid the service provider for the payables related
to the CABs billings noted above.  The overpayment amounted to $22,557.  An allowance
account was also recorded for $12,304 to correspond to the related receivable allowance.  The
combined total of the overpayment and the payable reserve of $34,861 has been included in
Accounts Receivable - Other on the Statement of Net Assets.

Note 4  - Loans Receivable

Loans to City of Coon Rapids

On April 11, 2002, the Board of Trustees of CRMU approved a resolution to provide financing
from the Gas Utility and Wastewater Utility for the purpose of providing funds to the City of
Coon Rapids in order for the City to pay the cost of construction of a new bridge and
reconstruction of the roadway approaching the bridge.  CRMU is financing the loan pursuant to
the provisions of Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa. 

The principal amount of the loan was $350,000 with $100,000 financed by the Gas Utility and
$250,000 financed by the Wastewater Utility.  The General Obligation note, dated May 31,
2002, specifies annual installments of $42,088 including interest at 3.50% beginning June 1,
2003, with a final payment on June 1, 2012.  The City has the right to prepay principal of the
note, in whole or in part, at any time prior to and in inverse order of maturity on terms of par
and accrued interest.

Annual amounts receivable for the loans are as follows:
Year

Ending Gas Wastewater Total
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2005 9,133$    2,893$    22,829$    7,233$    31,962$    10,126$  
2006 9,452      2,573      23,629      6,434      33,081      9,007      
2007 9,783      2,243      24,455      5,607      34,238      7,850      
2008 10,125    1,900      25,312      4,751      35,437      6,651      
2009 10,480    1,546      26,197      3,865      36,677      5,411      
2010 10,847    1,178      27,114      2,949      37,961      4,127      
2011 11,226    799         28,063      2,000      39,289      2,799      
2012 11,605    406         29,065      1,017      40,670      1,423      
Totals 82,651$  13,538$  206,664$  33,856$  289,315$  47,394$  
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Note 4  - Loans Receivable  (Continued)

Loan to Coon Rapids Development Group

On January 17, 2002, the Board of Trustees of CRMU approved a resolution to provide
financing from the Electric Utility to the Coon Rapids Development Group (a non-profit
organization) for a new residential development in the City of Coon Rapids.  The Board
approved a 10-year loan for $125,000 at 2.50% interest.  The CRMU board provided the funds
in order to promote economic and community development in the Coon Rapids area and to
create a sound economic base to serve as a foundation for future load growth and development
for CRMU.  The funds were advanced in May 2002.  Repayment terms specify monthly
principal payments of $1,178 plus interest calculated at 2.50% which began June 30, 2002, and
a final payment on June 30, 2012. 

Annual amounts receivable for the loan are as follows:

Year
Ending Electric
June 30, Principal Interest

2005 11,713$    2,427$    
2006 12,009      2,131      
2007 12,313      1,827      
2008 12,624      1,516      
2009 12,944      1,196      
2010 13,271      869         
2011 13,607      533         
2012 13,953      190         

102,434$  10,689$  

Note 5  - Interutility Loans

On February 18, 1999, the Gas Utility loaned funds to the Communications (Cable TV) Utility.
This loan is unsecured.  The loan was used for the purchase of equipment and for operating
capital for the Communications (Cable TV) Utility.  The initial loan amount was $300,000
with scheduled repayment over ten years.  Interest is accrued and added to the principal balance
of the note on a monthly basis at a rate of 4.50%.  Monthly payments are $3,109, which began
on September 30, 1999; total payments per year amount to $37,310.
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Note 5  - Interutility Loans  (Continued)

The detail of interutility receivables and payables at June 30, 2004 is as follows:

Balance Balance
Receivable Payable Beginning Payments During Year End of

Fund Fund of the Year Principal Interest Year

Gas
Communications - 

Cable TV 209,108$  28,482$  8,828$    180,626$ 

Amounts receivable for the Gas Utility and the debt service requirements for the
Communications (Cable TV) Utility for the interutility loan for years subsequent to
June 30, 2004, are as follows:

Year Ended Scheduled
June 30, Principal Interest Payments

2005 29,791$    7,519$    37,310$    
2006 31,160 6,150 37,310
2007 32,591 4,719 37,310
2008 34,088 3,222 37,310
2009 35,654 1,656 37,310
2010 17,342 224 17,566

180,626$  23,490$  204,116$  

Note 6 - Tax Increment Financing Receivable

The Gas Utility entered into an agreement with the Coon Rapids Action Council (a non-profit
organization) to provide interest-free funds for the purchase and development of residential
areas to further the growth of this Utility and to stabilize rates.  On July 1, 1996, the City of
Coon Rapids issued an Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Bond to CRMU for the
principal sum of $285,050.  As this bond carried no interest rate, the principal was discounted
over a twenty-year payback at CRMU's nominal interest rate.  Total payments received on the
1996 bond since inception exceeded the discounted principal balance; therefore, the excess has
been classified as Recovery of Discount on TIF Receivable on Exhibit B - Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets.  CRMU received $40,050 from the City
during the year ended June 30, 2004 as the final payment on this bond.
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Note 6 - Tax Increment Financing Receivable  (Continued)

On January 29, 2003, the Board of Trustees of CRMU passed a resolution authorizing the
advancement of funds for construction costs and labor to the Coon Rapids Development Group
(CRDG) (a non-profit organization) to assist in two separate economic development programs
with a combined cost of $444,922.  One project was for the development of land for
commercial businesses with a total cost of $138,281.  The other project was for the
development of land for single and multiple-family dwellings within the city of Coon Rapids
with a total cost of $306,641.

On April 5, 2004, CRMU entered into a development agreement with the City of Coon Rapids
in which the City agreed to make economic development rebate payments to CRMU in the
amount of $444,922.  To the extent that there are funds available in the City’s Urban Renewal
Tax Revenue Fund, the City will make payments pursuant to the agreement with the initial
payment beginning June 2005 and continuing until the debt is paid.  As the agreement carries
no interest rate, the principal was discounted over an anticipated repayment period of six years
at CRMU’s nominal interest rate.  Funds advanced to the City and the related discount for the
various Enterprise Funds were as follows:

Net
Utility Fund Total Discount Receivable

Electric 41,758$     4,170$      37,588$     
Gas 214,584 21,433 193,151
Water 50,316 5,026 45,290
Wastewater 138,264 13,810 124,454

Total 444,922$   44,439$    400,483$   

Based on the anticipated repayment amounts from the City and an anticipated repayment period
of six years, annual amounts receivable for the loan are as shown below and on the following
page.

Year Ending Electric Utility Gas Utility Water Utility
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2005 5,680$     1,359$   29,189$     6,984$     6,844$     1,638$   
2006 6,111 929 31,400 4,771 7,363 1,119
2007 6,289 750 32,315 3,858 7,577 904
2008 6,471 568 33,255 2,917 7,798 684
2009 6,660 380 34,223 1,949 8,024 457
2010 6,377 185 32,769 954 7,684 224

37,588$   4,171$   193,151$   21,433$   45,290$   5,026$   
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Note 6 - Tax Increment Financing Receivable  (Continued)

Year Ending Wastewater Utility Total
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2005 18,807$     4,499$     60,520$     14,480$   
2006 20,233 3,074 65,107 9,893
2007 20,821 2,486 67,002 7,998
2008 21,427 1,880 68,951 6,049
2009 22,051 1,256 70,958 4,042
2010 21,115 614 67,945 1,977

124,454$   13,809$   400,483$   44,439$   

Note 7  - Prepaid Rent Expense / Deferred Rent Revenue

In August 2001, the Electric Utility and Gas Utility entered into a rental agreement with the
Water Utility for the use of a directional-boring machine for a period of five years.  The
equipment is included in the Water Utility as a part of Capital Assets and has a cost basis of
$100,356 with accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2004, of $29,271. Amounts paid in
advance were $33,333 each by the Electric Utility and Gas Utility, for a total of $66,666 and
included all rental charges and a share of anticipated repairs and operating costs.

For the year ended June 30, 2004, rental income for the Water Utility amounted to $13,333;
rental expense amortized for the Electric Utility and Gas Utility amounted to $6,667 and
$6,666, respectively.

Future recognition of rental income and future amortization of rental expense for succeeding
years will be as follows:

Rental
Year Ended Income Rental Expense

June 30, Water Electric Gas

2005 13,333$     6,667$       6,666$       
2006 13,333 6,667 6,666
2007 2,223 1,111 1,112

Totals 28,889$     14,445$     14,444$     
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Note 8  - Municipal Building

The Electric Utility and Gas Utility provided funds for construction of a building, which is used
as an office facility for CRMU, the city library and general city offices.  Based on square
footage data, CRMU utilizes 76.83% of the facility and the general city and city library
utilize 23.17%.  The city reimburses the Electric Utility and Gas Utility for a share of building
operating costs.  For financial reporting purposes, all assets, liabilities, income and expenses of
this building are prorated in accordance with percentages of capital contributed, with the
Electric Utility’s share at 43.16% and the Gas Utility’s share at 56.84%.  Cost and accumulated
depreciation activity for the year ended June 30, 2004 was as shown below.

Balance Balance
Beginning End

of Year Increases Decreases of Year
Electric Utility

Cost

Land 15,106$    $0 $0 15,106$    
Buildings and Improvements 310,836 0 0 310,836
Equipment 10,812 0 0 10,812

336,754$  $0 $0 336,754$  

Less:  Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings and Improvements 161,852 6,132 0 167,984
Equipment 8,609 59 0 8,668

170,461 6,191 0 176,652

Net 166,293$  (6,191)$  $0 160,102$  

Gas Utility

Cost

Land 19,894 0 0 19,894
Buildings and Improvements 409,470 0 0 409,470
Equipment 14,207 0 0 14,207

443,571$  $0 $0 443,571$  

Less:  Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings and Improvements 213,180 8,078 0 221,258
Equipment 11,305 78 0 11,383

224,485 8,156 0 232,641

Net 219,086$  (8,156)$  $0 210,930$  
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Note 8  - Municipal Building  (Continued)

Municipal building assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings and Improvements 10 - 50 Years
Equipment 5 - 40 Years

Note 9  - Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2004 was as follows:

Balance
Beginning

of Year Balance
(as restated, End 

Note 22) Increases Decreases of Year
Utility Plant, Facilities and Equipment

Steam Production Plant - Neal 4 1,766,589$   3,949$      $0 1,770,538$   
Local Production Facilities 1,663,353 13,655 (3,480) 1,673,528
Transmission Plant System 918,160 52,854 (10,709) 960,305
Distribution Plant System 9,524,494 105,876 0 9,630,370
General Facilities and Equipment 1,821,952 45,307 (28,225) 1,839,034

Total Utility Plant, Facilities
and Equipment 15,694,548 221,641 (42,414) 15,873,775

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Steam Production Plant - Neal 4 857,655 46,635 0 904,290
Local Production Facilities 1,051,180 39,218 (399) 1,089,999
Transmission Plant System 413,667 35,621 (239) 449,049
Distribution Plant System 2,819,540 216,111 0 3,035,651
General Facilities and Equipment 808,726 91,003 (25,921) 873,808

Total Accumulated Depreciation 5,950,768 428,588 (26,559) 6,352,797

Net Utility Plant, Facilities
and Equipment 9,743,780 (206,947) (15,855) 9,520,978

Construction in Progress 15,860 152,353 (25,431) 142,782

Total Capital Assets, Net 9,759,640$   (54,594)$   (41,286)$   9,663,760$   
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Note 9  - Capital Assets  (Continued)

Total depreciation expense for CRMU for the year ended June 30, 2004, amounted to
$442,935, which includes $14,347 in depreciation on the municipal building assets.
Depreciation expense charged to operations and the estimated useful lives per classification of
depreciable property for each fund are as shown below and on the following page.

Estimated Depreciation
Communications Utility: Useful Life Expense

Telephone

General Facilities and Equipment 5 - 40 Years 425$            

Total 425$            

Communications Utility:
Cable TV, Internet and Pagers

Local Production Facilities 5 - 40 Years 7,119$         
General Facilities and Equipment 5 - 40 Years 3,338

Total 10,457$       

Electric Utility

Steam Production Plant - Neal 4 40 Years 46,635$       
Transmission Plant System 24 - 40 Years 32,862
Distribution Plant System 5 - 40 Years 168,542
General Facilities and Equipment 5 - 40 Years 55,468
Municipal Office Building and Equipment 5 - 40 Years 6,191

Total 309,698$     
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Note 9  - Capital Assets  (Continued)

Estimated Depreciation
Useful Life Expense

Gas Utility

Local Production Facilities 40 Years 4,504$         
Distribution Plant System 5 - 40 Years 10,619
General Facilities and Equipment 5 - 40 Years 11,361
Municipal Office Building and Equipment 5 - 50 Years 8,156

Total 34,640$       

Water Utility

Local Production Facilities 25 - 40 Years 8,050$         
Transmission Plant System 40 Years 2,759
Distribution Plant System 5 - 50 Years 17,901
General Facilities and Equipment 5 - 40 Years 17,313

Total 46,023$       

Wastewater Utility

Local Production Facilities 20 - 40 Years 19,545$       
Distribution Plant System 4 - 40 Years 19,049
General Facilities and Equipment 5 - 40 Years 3,098

Total 41,692$       

Note 10 - Changes in Long-term Liabilities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2004 is shown on the
following page.
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Note 10 - Changes in Long-term Liabilities  (Continued)

Balance Balance Due
Beginning End Within

of Year Increases Decreases of Year One Year

Revenue Bonds 2,885,000$  $0 (150,000)$    2,735,000$ 185,000$  
Less:  Bond Discount (35,231) 0 3,229 (32,002) (3,227)

Net Revenue Bonds 2,849,769 0 (146,771) 2,702,998 181,773
Capital Loan Notes 1,950,000 1,925,000 (2,075,000) 1,800,000 130,000
Interutility Loans 209,109 0 (28,483) 180,626 29,790
Deferred Rent Revenue 42,222 0 (13,333) 28,889 13,333

5,051,100$  1,925,000$ (2,263,587)$ 4,712,513$ 354,896$  

Note 11 - Bonds and Notes Payable

Series 1998 Electric Revenue Bonds

The Series 1998 Bonds were issued on May 15, 1998, to finance the construction of a hybrid
fiber coaxial distribution system, tools and equipment; the construction of a new utilities
building; and to refund the final maturity of a previous electric revenue bond issuance.  The
face amount of the original issue was $3,445,000 with interest rates from 4.85% to 5.10%. The
bonds were issued at a discount; the unamortized discount at June 30, 2004, amounted to
$32,002.  The bonds are payable serially over sixteen years commencing June 1, 1999, with a
final maturity of June 1, 2014.  Bonds due after June 1, 2006 will be subject to call for prior
redemption as of that date or any date thereafter upon terms of par plus accrued interest to date
of redemption.

The resolution providing for the issuance of the Series 1998 revenue bonds includes the
following provisions:

A. The bonds will only be redeemed from future earnings of the Electric Utility and
bondholders hold a lien on the future earnings of the fund.

B. The Electric Utility will accumulate cash sufficient to pay the next fiscal year’s principal
and interest payments in a separate electric revenue bond and interest sinking fund.
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Note 11 - Bonds and Notes Payable

Series 1998 Electric Revenue Bonds  (Continued)

C.  The Electric Utility will set aside, in a separate electric revenue debt service reserve
fund, an amount equal to the maximum amount of principal and interest coming due in
any succeeding year.  This account is restricted for the payment of principal and interest
on the bonds when there is insufficient money available in the electric revenue bond and
interest sinking fund.

D. The Electric Utility will set aside periodic amounts sufficient to accumulate a minimum
of $150,000 in a separate improvement fund.  This account is restricted for payment of
extraordinary maintenance expenses or repairs, renewals and replacements; rentals on
any part of the system or payment due for any property purchased as a part of the system
and for capital improvements to the system.  In addition, the funds in this account can be
used to pay principal and interest payments, which the other accounts might be unable to
make.

E. According to the bond covenants, if the amount on hand in the bond and interest sinking
fund and debt service reserve fund exceed the amount required by the bond provisions,
the excess is to be withdrawn and paid into the revenue fund.  At June 30, 2004, there
were no significant excess funds in the sinking fund or reserve fund accounts.

During the year ended June 30, 2004, CRMU was in compliance with the revenue bond
provisions.

Subordinate Series 2000 and 2003 Electric Revenue Capital Loan Notes

On August 5, 2003, CRMU issued $1,925,000 of Subordinate Series 2003 Electric Revenue
Capital Loan Notes to advance refund a previous electric capital loan note issuance.  The
previous issuance, Subordinate Series 2000 Capital Loan Notes issued on June 15, 2000,
provided funds to pay the costs of improvements and extensions to the Electric Utility
including the purchase of three 1860 - kilowatt caterpillar engines.  The outstanding balance of
the Series 2000 capital loan notes at July 1, 2003 was $1,950,000.  Principal paid on the Series
2000 notes prior to refinancing amounted to $25,000.

The interest rate on the Subordinate Series 2003 Capital Loan Notes is 3.85% computed using
a 360-day year.  Monthly principal and interest payments are scheduled with the amount of the
monthly installment of principal varying on an annual basis.  The final payment is scheduled
for June 15, 2015.  The Series 2003 notes may be called for redemption and paid before
maturity on any date from any funds, regardless of source, in whole or, from time to time, in
part, in any order of maturity and within a maturity by lot. The terms of redemption shall be
par plus accrued interest to the date of call with no penalty for prepayment.
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Note 11 - Bonds and Notes Payable

Subordinate Series 2000 and 2003 Electric Revenue Capital Loan Notes  (Continued)

The resolution providing for the issuance of the Subordinate Series 2003 Capital Loan Notes
includes the following provisions:

A. The notes will only be redeemed from future earnings of the Electric Utility and note
holders hold a lien on the future earnings of the fund.  The notes are subordinate to the
outstanding electric revenue bonds dated May 15, 1998.  The notes will not constitute
general obligations of the City of Coon Rapids nor be payable in any manner by
taxation.  The City shall not, in any manner, be liable by reason of insufficient net
earnings of the Electric Utility.

B. Funds in the Revenue Fund shall first be disbursed to make all required deposits into
funds created by the prior resolutions for the Series 1998 revenue bonds.

C. The Electric Utility will set aside, in a separate sinking fund account on a monthly basis,
the amount necessary to pay in full the installment of principal and interest coming due
on the next payment date of the outstanding notes.

D. According to the note covenants, if the amount on hand in the sinking fund exceeds the
amount required by the note provisions, the excess is to be withdrawn and paid into the
revenue fund.  At June 30, 2004, there were no significant excess funds in the sinking
fund account.

During the year ended June 30, 2004, CRMU was in compliance with the capital loan note
provisions.

Details of the revenue bonds and capital loan notes payable are as follows:

Final Amount Outstanding
Date of Interest Due Annual Originally June 30,
Issue Rates Date Payments Issued 2004

Revenue Bonds:
Electric Revenue 4.85% to $90,000 to
Bond, Series 1998 05-15-98 5.10% 06-01-14 $360,000 $3,445,000 $2,735,000

Capital Loan Notes:
Electric Revenue
Capital Loan Notes,
Subordinate Series $110,000 to
2003 08-05-03 3.85% 06-15-15 $530,000 $1,925,000 $1,800,000

Total Outstanding, June 30, 2004 $4,535,000
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Note 11 - Bonds and Notes Payable  (Continued)

A summary of the annual revenue bond and note principal and interest requirements to maturity
by year is as follows:

Year Series 1998 Revenue Series 2003 Revenue
Ending Bonds  (1) Capital Loan Notes Total
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2005 185,000$    137,426$ 130,000$    67,006$   315,000$    204,432$    
2006 190,000 128,408 140,000 61,825 330,000 190,233
2007 225,000 119,097 125,000 56,699 350,000 175,796
2008 240,000 108,073 125,000 51,887 365,000 159,960
2009 275,000 96,072 110,000 47,339 385,000 143,411
2010 290,000 82,323 115,000 43,016 405,000 125,339
2011 305,000 67,677 125,000 38,412 430,000 106,089
2012 325,000 52,275 125,000 33,599 450,000 85,874
2013 340,000 35,700 135,000 28,610 475,000 64,310
2014 360,000 18,360 140,000 23,325 500,000 41,685
2015 0 0 530,000 11,052 530,000 11,052

Totals 2,735,000$ 845,411$ 1,800,000$ 462,770$ 4,535,000$ 1,308,181$ 

(1)  Annual  principal  requirements  for the Series 1998 Revenue  Bonds are shown exclusive
       of bond discount amortization.

Note 12  - Pension and Retirement Benefits

CRMU contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of Iowa.
IPERS provides retirement and death benefits, which are established by state statute to plan
members and beneficiaries.  IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information.  The report may be obtained by
writing to IPERS, P.O. Box 9117, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual covered salary and CRMU is
required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll.  Contribution requirements are
established by state statute.  CRMU's contribution to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2004,
2003, and 2002 were $28,468, $27,811 and $26,484, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year. 
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Note 13 - Major Customer

A significant portion of CRMU's Electric Utility and Gas Utility Fund’s revenue is derived
from a single customer.  This customer generated approximately 25.6% of the Electric Utility’s
total sales to customers and 39.4% of the Gas Utility’s total sales to customers for the year
ended June 30, 2004.  Subsequent to June 30, 2004, this customer announced a change in their
operations.  As a result, CRMU anticipates a reduction in industrial electric and gas sales in the
future.

Note 14 - Concentration of Credit Risk

CRMU provides utility services to commercial and residential customers in a specified service
area in and around the City of Coon Rapids, Iowa.  Credit is granted to substantially all
customers, all of whom are local businesses or residents.  All new customers of CRMU are
required to pay a meter deposit.  The deposit is refundable, within twelve months, if their
account balances have been paid on time during this period.

The tax increment financing receivable by the various Utility Funds is subject to collection of
property taxes in the tax increment financing district located in the City of Coon Rapids, Iowa.
                                
The interutility loan receivable by the Gas Utility from the Communications (Cable TV) Utility
is unsecured.  Repayment is dependent upon the sales and collection policies of the
Communications (Cable TV) Utility of CRMU.

Note 15 - Risk Management

CRMU is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  These risks are
covered by the purchase of commercial insurance.  CRMU assumes liability for any
deductibles and claims in excess of coverage limitations.  Settled claims from these risks have
not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Note 16 - Related Party Transactions

CRMU had business transactions between CRMU and CRMU officials totaling $42 during the
year ended June 30, 2004.



COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

-55-

Note 17 - Health Insurance

CRMU has a group health insurance policy, which provides comprehensive medical coverage
for eligible employees and, if elected, their spouses and dependents.  In order to reduce health
insurance costs, CRMU self-insures employee eligible medical costs that are not reimbursed by
the health insurance provider.  Under the self-insured program, the employees can apply for a
reimbursement for out of pocket expenses that are considered normal and acceptable under the
comprehensive medical insurance program.  The employee can make an application for
reimbursement by providing CRMU with a copy of an explanation of benefit report provided
by the insurance carrier.  The amount of the deductibles and out of pocket expenses for the
employees are as follows:

 

Deductible Out-of-Pocket

Single Family Single Family

Employee 2,000$   4,000$   2,000$   4,000$   

Note 18 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

1.   CRMU has a contract, effective to December 31, 2020, with the United States Department
of Energy to provide CRMU firm electric power up to 2,400 kilowatts during any winter
season month and up to 2,670 kilowatts during any summer season month, through
December 31, 2005.  This contract provides that the contract rate of delivery for firm power
will be recalculated January 2006, and January 2011, for the kilowatts to be provided
during the subsequent winter and summer seasons. 

2.   CRMU entered into a contract with its major transporter of natural gas in August 1993 that
requires a capacity demand of approximately $127,000 annually.  The initial expiration date
of the contract was through October 31, 1996, which was subsequently extended through
October 31, 2008.

3. Prior to June 30, 2003, the Gas Utility entered into a contract for the construction of a gas
main crossing.  The total contract to June 30, 2004, including change orders, amounted to
$217,319 with $147,316 completed and approved.  The remaining amount of the contract
will be paid as the work progresses and is approved.

4.   In March 2004, the Electric Utility entered into a contract for purchase and installation of
fuel oil storage tanks.  The total contract to June 30, 2004, including change orders,
amounted to $35,731 with $30,916 completed and approved.  The remaining amount of the
contract will be paid as the work progresses and is approved.
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Note 18 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities  (Continued)

5. In March 2004, the Wastewater Utility entered into a contract for wastewater system
consultation.  The original amount of the contract amounted to $5,500 with $1,903
completed and approved.  The remaining amount of the contract will be paid as the work
progresses and is approved.

Note 19 - Cash Flow Information

CRMU had the following non-cash transactions for the year ended June 30, 2004:

1. Non-cash operating and capital and related financing transactions occurred when a prior
period adjustment was made for inventories, as referred to in Note 22.  The adjustment
consisted of a net increase in inventories of $41,449; a decrease in capital assets of $59,655
and a decrease in accumulated depreciation of $5,344.

2. Non-cash capital and related financing transactions occurred when CRMU incurred liability
for the purchase of property, equipment and construction in progress, which was unpaid at
June 30, 2004.  The total unpaid liability amounted to $79,041.

3. Non-cash investing transactions occurred in relation to the discount of the Tax Increment
Financing Receivable.  The amount of the discount per fund was as follows:

Electric Utility $ 4,171
Gas Utility 21,433
Water Utility 5,026
Wastewater Utility       13,810

$    44,440

Note 20 - Joint Use Agreement

On April 19, 2002, the Board of Trustees adopted and approved a resolution between the
Electric Utility and Communications (Telephone) Utility for “A Joint Use Agreement Under
Iowa Code Chapter 28E”.  The Electric Utility financed and installed a communications
distribution system for the use and support of the electric functions of the Electric Utility
system.  This communications distribution system is the sole property of the Electric Utility.
Through the joint use agreement, the Communications (Telephone) Utility is granted the right
to use the three networks of the communications distribution system in varying percentages as
specified in the agreement. 
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Note 20 - Joint Use Agreement  (Continued)

The term of the agreement is forty years and commenced on July 1, 2002.  For the term of the
agreement, the Communications (Telephone) Utility will pay to the Electric Utility, the sum of
$173,000 on or before the last day of June each year with the first payment due and paid on
June 30, 2003.  The arrangements and terms of the agreement were based upon present market
value and economic conditions in sole reference to the joint use of the communications
distribution system by the Electric Utility and Communications (Telephone) Utility.  The
Communications (Telephone) Utility is obligated to comply with all property tax filing
requirements imposed under Iowa Code Chapter 433.

Note 21 - Other Information

CRMU provides utility and other services to the City of Coon Rapids.  CRMU contributes an
amount equal to these utilities and services back to the City as in-lieu-of-tax payments.  The
total amount paid to the City for the year ended June 30, 2004 amounted to $97,112.

Note 22 - Prior Period Adjustments

Restatements were made to inventories, capital assets and net assets to correct errors in the
proper accumulation of inventory costs in previous years.

Communications (Telephone) Utility

Inventories were increased by $1,200 with an offset to net assets to correct for items not
included in the physical inventory count in previous years.

Communications (Cable TV) Utility

Inventories were increased by $4,680 with an offset to net assets to correct for items not
included in the physical inventory count in previous years.

Electric Utility

A net increase of $12,719 was made to correct inventories.  Part of the adjustment
consisted of inventory items that were incorrectly capitalized.  Inventories were increased
and capital assets were decreased by $59,655 to remove the items from utility plant and
record as inventory.  As a result of the decrease in capital assets, accumulated depreciation
was decreased by $5,344 with an offset to net assets. Electric inventory was also adjusted
to correct the valuation of certain inventory items recorded at cost to their lower market
value.  As a result, inventories were decreased by $46,936 with an offset to net assets.
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Note 22 - Prior Period Adjustments  (Continued)

Gas Utility

Inventories were increased by $22,850 with an offset to net assets to correct for items not
included in the physical inventory count in previous years.

The effects of the restatements are summarized as follows:

CommunicationsCommunications
(Telephone) (Cable TV) Electric Gas

Utility Utility Utility Utility
Net Assets at June 30, 2003,

as previously reported 541,025$     48,070$    5,797,984$    2,444,337$    

Adjustments:
Inventory 1,200 4,680 12,719 22,850
Capital Assets 0 0 (59,655) 0
Accumulated Depreciation 0 0 5,344 0

Net Assets at June 30, 2003,
Restated 542,225$     52,750$    5,756,392$    2,467,187$    

Note 23 - Accounting Change and Restatements

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements -
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments ; Statement No. 37,
Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments:  Omnibus; Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures; and
Statement No. 41, Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Perspective Differences, were
implemented for the year ended June 30, 2004.  The statements create new basic financial
statements for reporting the Utility’s financial activities.

No restatement was required for accrual adjustments, as prior financial statements have always
been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.  There are no non-major funds presented as
each enterprise fund has been treated as a major fund.
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In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the Coon Rapids City Council annually adopts a budget on the
cash basis following required public notice and hearing for all funds of the primary government and
component units, including CRMU's operations.  The annual budget may be amended during the year
utilizing similar statutorily prescribed procedures. The budget for the City of Coon Rapids was amended
for the year ended June 30, 2004; however, the budget amendment did not apply to CRMU’s operations.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of disbursements, known as
functions, not by fund or fund type.  These nine functions are:  public safety, public works, health and
social services, culture and recreation, community and economic development, general government, debt
service, capital projects and business type activities.  CRMU’s budget is included in the business type
activities function.  Function disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for the
primary government funds and enterprise funds, which would include CRMU’s
disbursements.  Although the budget document presents function disbursements by fund, the legal level
of control is at the aggregated function level, not by fund.

During the year ended June 30, 2004, cash disbursements for CRMU in the business type activities
function exceeded the amount budgeted for their operations.  However, as noted previously, the budget
for the City of Coon Rapids includes the primary government and its component units and each entity
has disbursements included in the business type activities function.  Therefore, we were unable to
determine if the overall budget for business type activities was exceeded for the year ended June 30,
2004.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Board of Trustees
  Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities

We have audited the financial statements of Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities, a component unit of the
City of Coon Rapids, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 1, 2004.  We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards, Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa, and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities’ financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations and contracts, non-compliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  However, we noted certain immaterial instances of
noncompliance that are described in Part III of the accompanying Schedule of Findings.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utilities' operations for the year ended
June 30, 2004, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit
of the financial statements of the Utilities. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited.  The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes.  Prior year statutory comments have been resolved except for items III-G-04 and III-M-04.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities’ internal control
over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial
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reporting.  However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and
its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions.  Reportable conditions involve matters coming
to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over
financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in
the financial statements.  Reportable conditions are described in Part II of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that
would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.  Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose
all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses.  However, of the reportable
conditions described above, we believe items II-A-04 and II-B-04 are material weaknesses.  Prior year
reportable conditions have been resolved.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees and customers of Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities and other parties to whom Coon Rapids
Municipal Utilities may report.  This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by the personnel of
Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities during the course of our audit.  Should you have any questions
concerning any of the above matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

Olsen, Muhlbauer & Co., L.L.P.

OLSEN, MUHLBAUER & CO., L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

Carroll, Iowa
October 1, 2004
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Part I:  Summary of the Independent Auditors' Results:

       
      (a) An unqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements.

      (b) Reportable conditions in internal control over financial reporting were disclosed by the audit
of the financial statements, including material weaknesses.

      (c) The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the financial statements.
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Part II:  Findings Related to the Financial Statements:

Instances of Non-Compliance:

No matters were noted.

Reportable Conditions:

II-A-04 Account Reconciliations Review

Although management stated that reviews were made of account reconciliations and
related adjustments, the reconciliation reports and adjusting entries were not initialed to
document their review.

Recommendation

Reconciliations of balance sheet accounts including the cash accounts, accounts
receivable and accounts payable are an important internal control used by management
to ensure that all transactions are properly recorded in the accounting records and to help
identify errors.  We recommend that management document their review of such
reconciliations to ensure their accuracy and completion.  In addition, management
should document their review of all adjusting entries to verify their approval of the
entries.

Response

We will document our review and approval of account reconciliations and adjusting
entries.

Conclusion

Response accepted.
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Part II:  Findings Related to the Financial Statements: 

Reportable Conditions: (Continued)

II-B-04 Disbursements

In our review of disbursements, we noted the following:

1) Four invoices were not initialed to indicate approval for payment

2) CRMU personnel were unable to locate invoices or supporting documentation for
the following payments:

Date Paid To Amount

July 3, 2003 CRMU - Petty Cash $ 497.45
July 22, 2003 CRMU - Petty Cash $ 406.73
May 18, 2004 Mark Winnett $ 312.82

3) Documentation for some employee expense reimbursements were incomplete or
missing. In two instances, the employee provided charge slips for meal expenses
that only listed the total charge and not an itemized listing of the expenses.  In
another instance, invoices were not provided for the employee’s meal expense.
Total incomplete or missing invoices amounted to $263.82.

Recommendation

Management should initial all invoices to document their review and approval for
payment.

Invoices and supporting documentation should be available to support all
disbursements.  The supporting documents should be in sufficient detail to verify their
propriety.

Response

We will comply with the recommendations.

Conclusion

Response accepted.
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Part II:  Findings Related to the Financial Statements: 

Reportable Conditions:  (Continued)

II-C-04 Information System

The following weaknesses in CRMU’s computer based systems were noted:

CRMU does not have written policies for:

• Requiring password changes every 60 to 90 days or maintaining password
confidentiality.

• Usage of the internet.

• Prohibiting installation of non-licensed software.

• Personal use of CRMU owned computer equipment or software.

• Requiring back-up tapes to be stored off-site.

• Requiring a time-out and/or log off function or a screensaver password to protect
a terminal if left unattended.

• Requiring a disaster recovery plan to address critical applications, staff
responsibilities, etc. in the event of a natural disaster or other emergency situation.

Also, the computer system does not lock out a user if the user has entered the wrong
password a specified number of times.

Recommendation

CRMU should develop written policies addressing the above items in order to improve
their control over computer based systems.  A written disaster recovery plan should be
developed and back-up tapes should be stored off-site in a fireproof vault or safe.  Also,
the computer should lock out users that input their passwords incorrectly a specified
number of times.
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Part II:  Findings Related to the Financial Statements: 

Reportable Conditions:

II-C-04 Information System  (Continued)

Response 

CRMU believes that the recommended password procedures could compromise
computer security and decrease efficiency.  This could occur because some employees
won’t remember their new password and will write it down and store it in a non-secure
area.  We will consider requiring password changes at least annually.

CRMU does not have written policies on internet usage, prohibition of installation of
non-licensed software, and personal usage of computer equipment or software.
However, employees have been verbally notified of these policies.  In addition, the
office area is open to management oversight at all times.

Currently, CRMU stores back-up tapes in a fireproof vault every night; however, the
vault is not located off-site.  We will consider off-site storage at an appropriate facility.

We will review all current policies and procedures and establish written policies that
will compliment our operations.

Conclusion

Response accepted.
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Part III:  Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting:

 III-A-04 Official Depositories

The Board of Trustees has approved a resolution naming official depositories.  The
maximum deposit amount stated in the resolution was not exceeded during the year
ended June 30, 2004.

III-B-04 Certified Budget

Cash disbursements for CRMU operations in the Business Type Activities function
exceeded the amounts budgeted for the year ended June 30, 2004. 

CRMU is a component unit of the City of Coon Rapids; therefore, their disbursements
and the disbursements of other component units are included with those of the City
when the annual budget is adopted.  Therefore, we were unable to determine if the
overall budget for business type activities for the City of Coon Rapids was exceeded for
the year ended June 30, 2004.

Recommendation

CRMU should monitor their cash basis disbursements in comparison with their cash
basis budget.  If it is estimated that disbursements for CRMU will exceed their budget,
the Board of Trustees should amend their budget and submit the information to officials
of the City of Coon Rapids.  City officials would determine if their overall budget would
need to be amended based on information from CRMU and other component units. 

Response

We will comply with this recommendation. 

Conclusion

Response accepted.



COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Schedule of Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2004

-75-

Part III:  Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting:  (Continued)

 III-C-04 Questionable Disbursements

No disbursements were noted that may not meet the requirements of public purpose as
defined in an Attorney General’s opinion dated April 25, 1979.

III-D-04 Travel expenses

No disbursement of Utilities’ money for travel expenses of spouses of Utilities’ officials
or employees were noted.

III-E-04 Business Transactions

Business transactions between Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities and Utility officials or
employees are detailed as follows:

Name, Title and Transaction
Business Connection Description Amount

 Dan Pomeroy, Supplies $ 42
Chairman of Board of Trustees,

   Owner of Coon Rapids Pharmacy, Inc.

In accordance with Chapter 362.5(10) of the Code of Iowa, the transactions with the
Trustee do not appear to represent a conflict of interest since total transactions were less
than $2,500 during the fiscal year.

III-F-04 Bond Coverage

Surety bond coverage of Municipal Utility officials and employees is in accordance with
statutory provisions.  The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually to insure
that coverage is adequate for current operations.
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Part III:  Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting: (Continued)

III-G-04 Trustee Minutes

No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the Board of
Trustees minutes but were not.

The Municipal Utilities published calendar year 2003 annual gross salaries in
accordance with an Attorney General's opinion dated April 12, 1978.  However, salaries
for part-time employees were not included in the publication.

Recommendation

The Municipal Utilities should publish all annual individual gross salaries as required to
comply with the Attorney General's opinion dated April 12, 1978.

Response

The publication will include all employees’ annual gross salaries in the future. 

Conclusion

Response accepted.

 III-H-04 Deposits and investments

No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and investment provisions of Chapter
12B and 12C of the Code of Iowa and the Coon Rapids Municipal Utilities' investment
policy were noted.

 III-I-04 Revenue Bonds and Notes

No instances of non-compliance with the electric revenue bond and capital loan note
requirements for the year ended June 30, 2004 were noted.
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Part III:  Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting: (Continued)

III-J-04 Payroll and Sales Tax Reports

Certain payroll tax, IPERS and sales tax reports were filed after deadlines, which
resulted in the assessment of late fees and penalties.

Recommendation

Payroll tax, IPERS and sales tax reports should be processed in a timely and accurate
manner in order to avoid the payment of late fees and penalties.

Response

Payroll tax, IPERS and sales tax reports will be processed timely in order to avoid the
payment of late fees and penalties.

Conclusion

Response accepted.

III-K-04 CRMU Vehicle Usage

CRMU owns vehicles for use by various employees while on Utility business.  CRMU
has not established a formal written policy to regulate the use of these vehicles.

Recommendation

CRMU should adopt a formal written policy regulating the use of their vehicles.  The
policy should include provisions for incidental personal use, commuting, assignment of
vehicles, documentation required, restricted vehicle uses, reimbursement by employees
for personal use, and additional compensation for employees.

Response

A policy will be written regulating the use of CRMU vehicles.

Conclusion

Response accepted.



COON RAPIDS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

Schedule of Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2004

-78-

Part III:  Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting: (Continued)

III-L-04 Compensated Absences

According to the CRMU employee handbook, employees earn holiday pay if they are
on-call on holidays.  They are granted a day off for this on-call time and are to use the
day as soon as possible; however, it is to be taken by the end of the year in which it is
accrued.  Based on our review, holiday pay has not been used or carried over according
to the policy, as the amount of unused holiday pay for certain employees at
June 30, 2004 was in excess of actual holidays available in 2004.

We also noted that certain employees were accounting for comp time on their pay
records.  Department heads keep track of the comp time used by their employees.
However, accurate information for comp time accumulated but not used at the end of
fiscal year 2004 was not available from management.  In addition, there is no written
policy authorizing CRMU employees to use comp time or to restrict the accumulation
to a maximum amount.

Recommendation

CRMU should comply with the policy relating to holiday pay and change employees’
records to reflect the correct accrual of hours.

CRMU should develop and approve a written policy that addresses the use of comp
time by employees.  In addition, if the use of comp time is approved, management
should keep complete and accurate records of each employee’s comp time activity and
balance.

Response

We will develop a written policy stating that when an employee requests vacation time
and has accrued holiday hours, the hours will be offset against holiday hours first. We
will review all accrued holiday hours to determine if the accrual is accurate.

We will develop a written policy on comp time and present it to the Board for approval.
 If we formally implement the use of comp time, we will maintain complete and
accurate records of comp time activity and balances.

Conclusion

Response accepted.
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Part III:  Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting: (Continued)

III-M-04 Excess Municipal Balances

At June 30, 2004, the unrestricted cash balance for the Wastewater Utility was
$895,964.  Cash basis disbursements for fiscal year 2004 were $84,234.  Therefore, the
Wastewater Utility’s ending balance was in excess of the fiscal year 2004
disbursements.

Recommendation

According to Municipal Utilities officials, CRMU has been retaining funds in the
Wastewater Utility in anticipation of major renovations, repairs and acquisitions of
equipment and fixed assets, thereby reducing or eliminating the need for the issuance of
bonds or notes. 

The Board should continue to review the Wastewater Utility fund and if it is determined
that balances are in excess of anticipated needs they should consider reducing the
balance in an orderly manner through revenue reductions, if financially feasible.

Response

CRMU has hired an engineering firm to assess the wastewater system and review and
identify structural deficiencies.  Repairs to the system have been made in fiscal year
2004 and CRMU anticipates the need for major additions and/or replacements in the
near term.

CRMU is reviewing the engineer’s recommendations of wastewater improvements.
Future plans to repair structural damage are being evaluated and initial cost estimates
appear to be very costly.  We will continue to monitor this fund in relation to anticipated
needs.

Conclusion

Response accepted.
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